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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREE

Financial highlight (RMB million) BERE(AREBEET)
Turnover = 1,021.5 19.1
Gross profit E 7 590.3 8.5
Profit before taxation & %5 71 KR 438.4 11.5
Profit attributable to equity shareholders HE 75 A% 3R FE 4G 71 370.4 8.9
Total comprehensive income attributable to  # 5 I R E(E 4R &
equity shareholders I 25 B 58 362.8 11.7
Earnings before interest, tax, BRAE B TER
depreciation and amortisation 54 B &2 7 445.1 12.1
Total equity attributable to EEBRREGERRRE
equity shareholders 1,396.1 17.5
Total assets BEE 1,578.9 18.5
Financial ratios B 7% b =
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) FEFERREE D R (%) Net cash N/A
FIE e ichis!
Interest coverage (times) T EERM = (EFE) 1,100.8 N/A
A 3E A
Financial information per share (RMB) SERHBER(ARET)
Earnings B 5 0.23 4.3
Dividends g 0.09 1.1
Equity attributable to equity holders HEmiEE AEGER 0.84 17.9
TURNOVER & %53 TOTAL ASSETS &&=
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBET) (AREBET)
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TEMBLEER

Profitability ratios B FI e b b =&
Gross profit margin EF =X 57.8%
Net profit margin before interest and tax R I B N B IE B S A E =X 43.0%
Net profit margin 5 = 36.3%
Return on equity 1 25 B 3 R 29.6%
Return on total assets 425 0] ¥ K 25.5%
Liquidity ratios REES R
Current ratio B L 3 8.19 times %
Quick ratio RE) L= 7.36 times %
Stock turnover days FEREE R 107.3 days B
Debtors’ turnover days FEURBR XA 8 B £X 89.4 days H
Creditors’ turnover days FETBR B 2 B 2 79.0 days B
Capacity adequacy ratios BEAXFEHEE
Gearing ratio BELX N/A 38 F
Debt to net worth ratio B FE L =X 4.4%
Interest coverage (times) F 2 E A X (580 1,100.8 times £
Others Hith
Net debt to shareholders’ funds FEBHERRE X Net cash

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN % # % NET PROFIT MARGIN % #;8 =
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hosa International Limited (the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the Company’s report on annual results for the

year ended 31 December 2014.

FURR :

RABRAREDPEBFRERRAA(AER)EZS(ESFS)REXRDFTEE

2014F 1283 BILFENFEEERS °

In 2014, every single business was confronted with severe market
challenges, namely the slowdown of China’s overall economic
growth, the huge impact on the traditional channel and marketing
model created by the emergence of mobile internet and the
development of the e-commerce, the tremendous changes in the
business environment and the mode of competition in the retail
sector. In line with the changes in market environment and business
landscape, the Group made active response to seize the opportunities
offered by the booming sports industry and the specialized market.
Besides, we focused on the consumers’ pursuit for sports lifestyle to
actively promote innovation and reform regarding the strategies of
the Group, industrial structure, product structure, structure of the
channel and the outlet model with an aim to sustain a steady and
healthy development trend. While fostering the continuous growth of
our indoor sportswear business, based on our sports industry
development strategies, the Group also progressively implemented
our strategic deployment in the sport industry, and thus laid a solid
foundation for our future development.

In the year of 2014, each operating indicator of the Group maintained
a steady and healthy growing trend. For the twelve months ended 31
December 2014, the turnover of the Group was RMB1,216.5 million,
which increased by 19.1% as compared with the same period last
year. The total profit was RMB405.2 million, which increased by
11.7%, as compared with the same period last year. The basic
earnings per share increased by 4.3% to RMB24 cents.

2014 PEEEBLHEEREBENE BHE
BORENETHENEREERRENZH
BEARRRANEE TEXENHEFBB/E
EBEEZEANE(L mEYESECEHRD
TRRHEE - KRERBETHRBEME X RE
MWEL BREE EEPREERNER
AMOMBEDBRRNZE BEEBEEHED
BEARTANTER CEENBE EXE
B ERGRE REEB KREAETERE
BELERFEE UETREVIRERERDE
ZoEBREREEZNEDRBEBHERTN
R EGaKEESRFEXERERMR FAA
BAEELSEREANEDRBEEXERAR
REBERKMERIT T T REMNER -

0145 E  SEHEELEERRETRENR
B RSB - HE2014F12A318 1L+ 1@
A SEMNEEEAARKI2165BE T It
EFRBEK191% BB AEARK452H
BT LEFRBERINTI% BREXTAF
ERARE247 1B RA43% -
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Based on the Group’s business results in the year of 2014, the Board
of the Group recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.9
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB5.4 cents) per share to the
shareholders of the Group for the twelve months ended 31 December
2014; and with the interim dividend of HK5.3 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB4.8 cents), the total dividend payout ratio for the
year was approximately 40%. In appreciation of the shareholders'
support and trust, the Board of our Group recommended an
additional payment of a special dividend of HK2 cents per share to
the shareholders of the Group.

The excellent operating result of the Group was widely recognised by
the market, thereby increasing our brand influence. In 2014, we were
selected in the Forbes' List of “China Enterprises with the Best
Potential 2014". Moreover, the Group was again recognised as one
of the “China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” by the World Brand Lab
with brand value increased from RMB2.836 billion in 2013 to
RMB3.506 billion.

As a fitness sportswear enterprise with a brand mission of advocating
and promoting a natural, healthy and joyful sports lifestyle, the Group
is committed to performing the important corporate mission of giving
back to the society and fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities
while continuing to improve the results of operation and shareholders’
returns. In 2014, the Group continued to promote and develop sports
and exercises throughout the nation. We widely cooperated with
partners like General Administration of Sport of China for general
sports promotion, and organised hundreds of fitness promotion
campaigns in colleges and universities and different cities across the
country, with the aim of spreading the culture of fitness, promoting
the pervasiveness of fitness activities and maintenance of fitness in a
scientific manner nationwide, while fulfilling the social responsibilities
through raising the health awareness and improving the health of the
PRC citizens. As a result, we were widely recognised and awarded the
“PRC Corporate Social Responsibilities Award 2014, Outstanding
Award” as organised by Xinhuanet and Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences and voted by the public in 2014.

In 2014, the Company devoted more effort on the sponsorship of
professional swimming and gym competitions, such as National
Swimming Championship Competition for the Asian Games Selection,
National Swimming Tournament, National Rhythmic Gymnastics
Tournament, National Aerobics Tournament and National Aerobics
Championship Competition. We are also the title sponsor of the FINA
Marathon Swimming World Cup and the global partner of FINA as
well as the global partner of FINA Diving World Series. As the sole
enterprise which gains the FINA certification for swimwear in China,
Hosa would support the provision of professional swim gear in every
competition of FINA.
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With the revolution on the entire channel model and marketing
model brought by the development of mobile internet and e-commerce,
the expectation of users in terms of personalised need and
professionalism has been continuously increasing and demand has
become more and more sophisticated. To follow the changing market
trend and the need of future development, during 2014, the Group
promoted the development of the enterprise in three key aspects of
the Group's existing businesses, including brand differentiation,
product structure optimization and reform of the channels. Our four
key measures are as follows:

1. enhancement on the channel construction of Water Cube
branded products to rapidly capture the market share on
swimwear products mass market which was not occupied
originally;

2. gradual optimisation of the existing channel model with
emphasis on malls, aiming at providing convenience and
enhanced consumption experience for consumers and focusing
on the construction of outlets model such as professional
network, e-commerce and direct selling and marketing by
coaches;

3. with respect to the establishment of retail outlets, emphasis was
placed on the enhancement of store quality and consumers'’
experience, elimination of networks with low efficiency and
promotion of HOTTO water lifestyle international brand
collection store and the indoor fitness store construction;

4. in terms of product structure, focus was put on the
development of professional products and the improvement
and enrichment of products’ functionalities.

The above measures achieved expected results and secured the
accomplishment of the planned operating goal of 2014 of the Group.
However, as new channels and outlets were at their initial stages,
these channels basically adopted the original products and marketing
models for operation, and were not in line with the consumption
characteristics of new channels. Hence, the contributions by new
channels and outlets to the overall results were insignificant, and
there are still lots of room for improvement, such as product structure
and marketing models in new channel and models as well as the
establishment of back office system.
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In 2015, in respect of the indoor sportswear business, the Group will
maintain and improve our strategies and measures for 2014 to ensure
steady business growth in the sector. The below shows the key
measures adopted:

1. focus on the consumption characteristics of e-commerce/micro-
mall/professional channels/direct sales by coaches, development
of a specific product structure in line with the features of the
new retail outlets consumption, and enhancement of the sales
capability of the new retail outlets;

2. development of smart apparel for creating new business growth
point in the future;

3. promotion of the establishment of sports and health stores,
improvement of the product structure of sports and health
stores and enhancement of the sales capability of single store;

4. continuance of an omni-channel establishment for retail outlets,
gradual sharing of information among products/services/
consumption and realization of interaction in terms of outlet
sales, services and experiences for various network points;

5. development of e-commerce business and expansion of the
sales scale of e-commerce.

With the development of mobile internet and the alteration of
consumers’ demand, enterprises are required to transform from
product sales-oriented B2C model into consumers’ lifestyle catering-
oriented C2B model. Consumers’ pursuits for sports and health have
been building up swiftly along with the surge in consumption level.
After the promulgation of “Certain Opinions on Promoting the
Development of Health Service Industry” in 2013, the State Council
promulgated “Certain Opinions on Accelerating the Development of
Sports Industry and Promoting Sports Consumption” in 2014, which
bring along a significant development opportunity for both of the
health service and sports service sectors. As a result, such market, of
which sports products, sports services and health management form
the significant components, is set to grow by trillion dollars in the next
decade. In respect of sports products and sports services, we are in
the leading position leveraging on the resources of the Group and our
controlling shareholders. In light of the above-mentioned reasons, the
Group timely formulated our strategies on the development in the
sports sector in the second half of 2014, and in the future, we expect
to establish the Group as a sports group which leads the healthy
sports lifestyle trend.

12 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014
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The Group's development strategies for the sports industry focus on
the establishment of a sports ecosphere catering for consumers’
healthy lifestyle to provide comprehensive 3A (“Anytime, Anywhere,
Anyway") services for consumers’ sports lifestyle.

From 2015, the Group will fully commence the implementation of our
sports business strategies with focus on the following tasks:

1. the development of mobile internet application and large data
application as well as online and offline interaction for
simultaneous promotion in establishing each system in the
ecosphere and gradually build up a comprehensive sports
ecosphere;

2. itis planned that the fitness management business will be in full
swing in 2015.

We believe that the promotion and implementation of the above
measures will tremendously consolidate the competitive edges of the
Group in sports sector in the future. Pursuant to the Group’s plan, it is
anticipated that the Group would preliminarily establish the basic
model for the sports ecosphere in 2015, commence full promotion
and expansion and begin to generate revenue in 2016, while it is
anticipated to bring along significant additional income and profit
growth for the Group in 2017. The implementation of the Group’s
sports industry strategies will create a huge room for future
development and growth of the Group as well as more significant
value and return for consumers and shareholders.

| would like to convey my gratitude to everyone who supports and
believes in us. The contributions and support of the senior
management, staff, partners, consumers and shareholders of the
Group are the cornerstone and the incentive of the continuous
development of our Group.

Shi Hongliu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 March 2015
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Market Overview

The Group faced both opportunities and challenges in 2014.
The year 2014 has witnessed a slowdown in the overall Chinese
economy growth while the rise of mobile internet and the
development of e-commerce have made enormous impacts on
the conventional sales channels and sales model, resulting in a
paradigm shift in the retail industry in terms of retail practices
and competition landscape, where the market posed great
challenges and pressure to reform to each corporation.
However, China’s sports and health industry is still booming
with much untapped potentials for growth and escalating
demand. In China, urbanization progress facilitates the
construction of stadiums while fitness and sports are gradually
becoming a trend as more consumers start to pursue a healthy
lifestyle with rising demand on more professional and
customised products and services; meanwhile, the Chinese
government promotes fitness activities across the nation and
provides support to the fitness industry, all of which present
tremendous opportunities for the Group’s future development.
Being the three product lines of the Group at the current stage,
fitness wear, swimwear and sports underwear all still have a
relatively enormous room for development. According to the
forecast made by Frost & Sullivan in the report of “Market
Analysis on China’s Indoor Sportswear Industry”, for the coming

HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WK DM
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5 years, the compound annual growth rate of fitness wear
market is expected to remain at a high level of 34.5%, while
the compound annual growth rates of swimwear market and
sports underwear market are expected to remain at 18.9% and
19.3% respectively. By 2018, based on ex-factory sales, the
market scale of fitness wear, swimwear and sports underwear
will amount to RMB15 billion, RMB6.9 billion and RMB1.7
billion, respectively.

Business Highlights

During 2014, in the face of market challenges, the Group
further promoted innovation in respect of branding, sales
channels and retail outlets, which secured a steadfast growth
for the Group’s turnover to reach RMB1,216.5 million,
representing an increase of 19.1% as compared to the same
period in 2013. The total profit attributable to the shareholders
of the Group (the “Shareholders”) amounted to RMB405.2
million, representing an increase of 11.7% as compared to the
same period last year.

19.1%,
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Currently, the Group’s fitness products and equipment are
indoor sportswear, including the three product lines of
fitness wear, swimwear, and sports underwear. Focusing
on the fitness demand of the target users, the Group
continues to optimise its product structure. In 2014, the
Group’s three product lines, namely fitness wear,
swimwear, and sports underwear, each achieved an
operating income of RMB392.3 million, RMB515.5 million
and RMB308.8 million, representing an increase of
33.5%, 23.3% and a decrease of 0.3% respectively as
compared to the same period last year.

In order to meet the multi-faceted demand from both the
fitness and swimming communities, the Group currently
possesses two brands of apparel products, namely Hosa
and Water Cube. The brand value of Hosa is continuously
on the rise, and in June 2014, the brand was again
recognised as one of the China’s 500 Most Valuable
Brands by the World Brand Lab, with its brand value
increased from RMB2.836 billion in 2013 to RMB3.506
billion. Subsequent to the introduction of Water Cube
brand apparel in 2013, the Group continued to ramp up
the promotion for Water Cube brand apparel in 2014,
and by leveraging on its brand influence, high professional
standard and price-performance ratio, the Group swiftly
captured a sizeable share of the mass swimwear market.
As of 31 December 2014, the Water Cube brand apparel’s
turnover increased by 238.6% as compared to the same
period in 2013.

In order to adapt to the development of mobile internet,
e-commerce and the changes in consumers’ consumption
patterns and to improve sales channels’ cost of sales, the
Group was committed to the innovation of channels. In
2014, the Group continued to optimise its original mall-
based channels, which further improved the entire
construction of sales channels for the purpose of creating
convenience for consumers and improving consumption
experience, and primarily promoted the construction of
sales outlets such as professional retail outlets, e-commerce
and direct sales by coaches. For the construction of
physical sales outlets, emphasis was placed on the

HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014
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improvement of the shop quality and consumption
experience, reduction of sales outlets with low efficiency
and further development of HOTTO water lifestyle
international brand collection store and the indoor fitness
store. Meanwhile, the Group also took advantage of the
features of the Group's products including specialization
and compatibility to encourage the offering of sales
packages with complementary products and brands by
means of wholesale and distribution. All of the above
measures provided extra consumption convenience to
consumers, improved their consumption experience while
enabling distributors to adapt to market changes and the
trend of channel development, lowering the cost of sales
and ensuring profit level.

As of 31 December 2014, the retained and fixed sales
outlets of the Group were 1,408, representing an increase
of 3.8% as compared to the same period last year.

Focusing on enhancing the brand personality as being
natural, healthy and joyful, the Group continued to carry
out accurate and effective brand promotion and
marketing campaigns which focused on our target
customers, and dedicated ourselves to promoting a
pleasant and healthy fitness lifestyle. To promote a fitness
culture, in 2014, the Group sponsored events such as
Hosa Cup Yoga Assembly, Shanghai Citizens Diving
Competition and Beijing Half-Marathon Relay Race, and
continued to collaborate with The Asian Fitness Academy
in organizing the Vibrant Asia - Fitness Carnival Series in a
number of cities in the country. Meanwhile, in 2014, the
Group stepped up its sponsorship in professional
competitions of swimming and fitness, which sponsored
events such as National Swimming Championship
Competition for the Asian Games Selection, National
Swimming Tournament, National Rhythmic Gymnastics
Tournament, National Aerobics Tournament and National
Aerobics Championship Competition, and served as the
title sponsor of FINA Marathon Swimming World Cup and
the global partner of FINA as well as the global partner of
FINA Diving World Series. As the sole domestic enterprise
passing the certification for FINA Swimwear Approval,
Hosa will support various competitions of FINA by
providing professional swimming gears. In 2014, the
Group also signed exclusive sponsorship agreements with
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a number of swimming teams including the Beijing and
Shandong swimming teams. Meanwhile, the Group also
continued to sponsor events including the World
Supermodel Contest, International Bikini Contest and
China’s Super Model Contest in 2014.

The above promotional events received overwhelming
response in the market and the brand influence and
professional status of Hosa were also effectively
promoted.

In 2014, the Group’s marketing expenditure input rate
was 3.3%.

Equipped with nearly 20 years of experience in indoor
sportswear research and development, rich professional
knowledge and technological build-up, the Group has
established a seasoned research and development team
for indoor sports apparel that is familiar with the demand
of indoor sportswear in China’s consumer market. Our
Group has created a globalized and professional research
and development system formed by domestic and foreign
professional cooperating institutions including Hosa
International Beijing Design Centre, Hosa International
Fujian Technology Centre, French Design Studio, function
and prototype expert team from Japan as well as The
Asian Fitness Academy, which enabled the Group to
continuously enhance its competitive strengths in terms of
the professional design, fashion design, functional
development and technology of indoor sportswear and
thus maintained the market competitive edge of the
Group's products. In 2014, Hosa passed the certification
for competition swimwear of FINA. As at 31 December
2014, the Group possesses 25 patents. In 2014, the
proportion of the Group’s investment in research and
development was 3.6%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial review

Turnover

By operating segments

Turnover of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 was RMB1,216.5 million (2013:
RMB1,021.5 million), representing an increase of 19.1%
as compared to the turnover for the financial year ended
31 December 2013. The following table sets forth the
sources of our revenue by operating segments in our
operations:

Domestic sales REkS

Swimwear — Hosa IKEE)— &
Swimwear — Water Cube  /KEBE&)— /KL
Fitness wear — Hosa & & By — &0

Sports underwear — Hosa  :E&h WK — &%

Subtotal INET

Overseas sales NS
Swimwear — Hosa KBS —IED
Fitness wear — Hosa 2 & min — &

Subtotal IINEF

Total FE

(f)

EEET W R D

Bt 7% [B] 8

LR

A& 5B R 5

AN EEE FE2014F12 8318 1F B
BEEMEXEBEAARK1,21658
2w (2013F : AR¥1,02158 &
JT)  WEE2013F 12 A31 B IEF K
FEMEEEIZINII% - TR
AEBZEBELEHE D HRA
TR

323,428 31.7
41,674 4.1
291,430 28.5
309,586 30.3
966,118 94.6
53,080 52
2,322 0.2
55,402 54

1,021,520 100.0
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Domestic sales increased from RMB966.1 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB1,183.1
million for the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
representing an increase of 22.5%. Overseas sales
decreased from RMB55.4 million for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013 to RMB33.4 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, representing a
decrease of 39.7%. Given that the market potential is
large in China, the Group will continue to focus its sales
efforts in the PRC market in the coming years.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consisted of production costs
and procurement costs of finished products from external
sources. Production costs include raw material costs, labor
costs as well as manufacturing overhead incurred in the
production of swimwear, fitness wear and sports
underwear. The following table sets forth a breakdown of
the cost of sales for the Group’s products:

BAHEEREZ2013F12 8318 1k
FHRFEHARBEITE & T8
MEHZE2014F12A31B 1L B E
EMARKII831GE T EIEA
22.5% ° G HNIEE BB 2013512
A3MB LU BFEENARKESS4H
B THBREHE2014F12A318 1k
HHREEMARKIZ4EE T T
[%39.7% - IR E M HINELERK
MMBERESR  NEBERKL
FREEERNEARENEAE -

5B A
AEBWHEEXNATEBREREEK
ARAEINBIRBER RO KA - £E
RABIREENKES &5\ &
BRAXRELNEMBAA ST
RAREEER - TREIIANKE
E mh B 3 AR AN BR AR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2014 2013

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARTT BIK ARETIT EBHHL

Raw materials R 432,680 75.1 324,845 75.3

Labor T 62,874 10.9 49,263 11.4

Manufacturing overhead 22 2 20,749 3.6 14,576 3.4
Procurement costs of B R 5% B8 Ak AN

finished products 59,970 10.4 42,525 9.9

576,273 100.0 431,209 100.0

RMHRAETEZERBELEENEE
BE an P B R AT R (RN R~ AR K
FEER KM ) BB - 8 E2014

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of procuring
raw materials used in the production of our products,
such as fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the average
purchase price for our key raw materials was RMB57.7 per
kilogram, which was slightly lower than that for the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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Certain production and processing procedures of our
products, primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing
and dyeing as well as fabric cutting, sewing and stitching,
are outsourced to external contract manufacturers. We
provide fabric materials to contract manufacturers for
processing and pay outsourced processing and service
fees. Such outsourced processing and service fees are
categorised under our raw material costs. Labor costs
consisted of salaries, benefits and other forms of
compensation paid to our production staff. Manufacturing
overhead mainly includes depreciation of production
facilities, costs associated with operating our facilities
including electricity, water, maintenance costs, etc.

AEEEGNETEENISR(E
ZAEMRE EADE MR
R INE TN R INE EE
e AEBEREEAMBEING E
EmETHNT XN BETMN
TERBE ZZFIBRFEMIE
Bk B 52 A& E AR EKAE
HT B INABEREAEEEE
BEIYMES BALEMFE
Y HEBATERFELEERE
Pr& - AR 8 VE AR B8 AY R AR (7R K
BEREERAR)S -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLELEE

2014 2013
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®Tx B AREFTT B
Swimwear — Hosa BB —ED 156,531 27.2 134,499 31.2
Swimwear — Water Cube KB &) — /K32 5 85,856 14.9 24,013 5.5
Fitness wear — Hosa 2 5 mn— 57 154,509 26.8 100,314 23.3
Sports underwear — Hosa ) N7k — J&5 179,377 31.1 172,383 40.0
576,273 100.0 431,209 100.0

Gross profit E F

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 was RMB640.3 million (2013: RMB590.3 million),
representing an increase of 8.5% as compared to that of
the year ended 31 December 2013. Gross profit margin of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
52.6%.

REBEHE2014F 128318 1EFE
MEF A AR®6403H & £ (2013
F£: ARKSQO3FET) BEHE
2013F 12 A31H I FEHEIN85% °
HE2014F 128318 Lt FEEHER
R 552.6% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET W R D

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our gross TREIIRMEREEDBE DD
profit from our operations and gross profit margin by AREBEKEEMSEFNRENREBM:

geographical regions and operating segments:

Domestic sales N E
Swimwear — Hosa KEB)— D 212,571 65.7
Swimwear — Water Cube  /K:EHE) — /K32 77 17,661 42.4
Fitness wear — Hosa & & By — &0 192,256 66.0
Sports underwear — Hosa ~ #E &R 5K — & % 137,203 443
Subtotal /INEF 559,691 57.9
Overseas sales BINEE
Swimwear — Hosa KEB)— 5D 29,438 55.5
Fitness wear — Hosa 2 B By — & 1,182 50.9
Subtotal IINEF 30,620 55.3
Total BET 590,311 57.8
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Other revenue

Our other revenue primarily consisted of government
grants, interest income from interest-bearing bank
deposits and rental income. Government grants were
provided by provincial or prefectural government
authorities in the form of unconditional subsidies as
recognition for our contribution to the local economy
through our business operation and our achievements as
one of the core enterprises in the local cluster of
enterprises. Other revenue increased from RMB25.5
million in 2013 to RMB73.1 million in 2014, representing
an increase of 186.8%. Such increase was mainly due to
the increase in the aggregate amount of government
grants and interest income, which amounted to RMB29.3
million and RMB43.6 million respectively in 2014 (2013:
RMB13.0 million and RMB11.7 million respectively).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, incentive fees for the
sales personnel employed by the retail outlets, remuneration
and employee benefits for our sales and marketing
personnel, rental expenses, packaging and transportation
expenses, depreciation and amortisation expenses of our
properties used for sales and marketing activities and
other miscellaneous expenses. Advertising and promotion
expenses primarily include fees paid for event sponsorship
and television, magazine and billboard advertising. Selling
and distribution expenses increased from RMB104.5
million in 2013 to RMB133.5 million in 2014, representing
an increase of 27.7%. The advertising and promotion
expenses and the subsidies to distributors amounted to
RMB40.5 million (2013: RMB33.8 million) and RMB58.8
million (2013: RMB41.8 million), respectively. Selling and
distribution expenses represented approximately 11.0%
of total revenue in 2014,
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Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted
primarily of remuneration and employee benefits for our
administrative staff, impairment losses for trade
receivables and prepayments, travel and transportation
expenses, general office expenses, stamp duty and other
miscellaneous expenses. Administrative and other
operating expenses were RMB88.3 million in 2014. The
research and development expenses amounted to
RMB43.4 million, and the proportion to the Group’s
turnover was 3.6%. The administrative and other
operating expenses to total revenue was 7.3% in 2014,

Finance costs

Our finance costs primarily consisted of interest and
administrative fees charged to our interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Total finance costs decreased from RMBO0.4
million in 2013 to nil in 2014 as it is the Group’s prudent
financing strategy to maintain the bank borrowings at a
low level. As at 31 December 2014, the bank borrowings
of the Group amounted to nil while the bills payable
amounted to RMB48.2 million (31 December 2013:
RMB60.9 million).

Profit from operations and dividend

The profit from operations for the year ended 31
December 2014 increased by 8.9% to RMB403.2 million
as compared with RMB370.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. Interim dividend of HK5.3 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB4.2 cents) per share for
the first half of the year of 2014 was declared and paid to
the Shareholders. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the directors have proposed a final dividend of HK6.9
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB5.4 cents) per
share, and with the interim dividend of HK5.3 cents, the
total dividend payout ratio for the year was approximately
40%. The directors have also proposed a special dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share. The above proposed dividends
are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Key financial ratios
The following table sets forth certain of our major
financial ratios as at 31 December of the year indicated:

TEMBGH R
TRB|IIAEBRAREEN12A
BNANETEBHBLHLE

2014

2013

Current ratio Bt X 7.91 times & 8.19 times f%
Quick ratio RE) R 7.15 times & 7.36 times &
Inventory turnover days FEEE A 101.5 days H 107.3 days H
Debtors’ turnover days AP ISR 77.6 days H 89.4 days H
Creditors’ turnover days JE 1~ BR SR B 83 B &L 77.2 days H 79.0 days H
Gearing ratio BELE N/A TEA N/A g
Working capital and working capital LEBEESNLEBEESEIR

management

The inventory turnover days of the Group were 101.5
days for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared
to 107.3 days for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
inventory turnover days decreased slightly by 5.8 days.
The Group's debtors’ turnover days (including both trade
debtors and bills receivable) decreased to 77.6 days for
the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to 89.4
days for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Group
generally allows average credit period of 90 days to
customers. The Group's creditors’ turnover days (including
both trade and bills payables) were 77.2 days for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as compared to 79.0 days for
the year ended 31 December 2013. The creditors’
turnover days in 2014 were similar to the credit periods
granted by the Group’s suppliers of approximately 90
days. The overall working capital cycle has decreased from
117.7 days to 101.9 days mainly due to the above
reasons. Compared with 2013, the overall operation has
improved and was maintained at a normal level.

N £ EE E2014F12A8318 1k F
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The Group's primary objective of capital management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the
Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. The
Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
Shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital
structure

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current
assets of RMB1,542.4 million (2013: RMB1,314.4 million)
of which cash and bank deposits were RMB1,275.6
million (2013: RMB1,076.8 million). Total bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2014 were nil (2013: nil) while the bills
payable were RMB48.2 million (2013: RMB60.9 million).
Bank borrowings and bills payable were mainly used for
the Group’s working capital management and/or
financing the purchases of the Group. The Group’s
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 (total bank
borrowings divided by total assets) was nil. The Group's
transactions and the monetary assets are principally
denominated in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced
any material difficulties in operations or liquidity as a result
of fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year.
The Group adopts centralized financing and treasury
policies in order to ensure the Group’s funding is utilized
efficiently. Conservative approach is adopted in
monitoring foreign exchange exposure and interest rate
risk. The Group’s liquidity position remains strong and the
Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore investment and business development
opportunities when expanding its market share in China.
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Use of Proceeds — Initial Public Offering

The shares of the Company were listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 16
December 2011 with net proceeds from the global
offering of approximately RMB488.6 million (after
deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses). The amount utilized as at 31 December 2014

was as follows:

PTS RIA F & — ¥R 2B 2%
&=

KRAFBRDR2011F12R16BES
BHARXSABR QR EREE -
BERERBEMBSRIEFELOAA
Ri4g86E B L(HMBREHEBE R
HEEFAEZ) - R2014F12A318E
BRESENT

As at 31 December 2014

Amount ®2014%12A31H
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage  of net proceeds Amount utilized Remaining balance
FEREAFREARE Bl e RIEFH EBRAEHE R
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR%&BERT) (ARE®BER) (ARE®BET)
1. Expansion of distribution network 35% 171.0 137.0 34.0
BRE S B
2. Enhancement of brand image through
marketing and promotion 25% 122.1 113.8 83
BATHERREERARETR
3. Expansion of production capacity 15% 73.3 37.1 36.2
BRER
4. Investment in research, design and
development activities 10% 48.9 48.9 —
R RARREEHORE
5. Development and upgrading of
supply chain and information
management systems 5% 24.4 = 244
BRETGBEERESERERLS
6. Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes 10% 48.9 48.9 —
REBEGREAM—RARBE
REES
100% 488.6 385.7 102.9

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2011 (the

"Prospectus”).

RABERBEANRFHBS2011F
1ZAHMARER((HERERD A
WEAINK B R ERER T FIEKIEA
R
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Use of Proceeds — Share Placements

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited (“Ho Born”), the Company and Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C., as the placing agent, entered into a placing
and subscription agreement pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to procure purchasers to subscribe for
54,500,000 existing shares owned by Ho Born to not
fewer than six independent placees at the placing price of
HK$2.85 per share, and Ho Born conditionally agreed to
subscribe, and the Company agreed to allot and issue to
Ho Born for such number of subscription shares which is
equivalent to the number of shares actually placed under
the placing at the subscription price of HK$2.85 per share.
Details of these transactions are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 September 2013.

Approximately RMB116.9 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses) was
raised from the subscription. The amount utilized as of 31
December 2014 was as follows:

FIEFERE - RO E
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EREBRERERBALZGRRKRND
28BN B EERBEREAES
2. 54,500,000% 38 & Ik 5 R B & T
TNLORRNBBILERA MERE
ERUGERERBRARARERBER
EHMBERETHEHSRER LIRS
AR m285B T2 RBERE <K
MEBB v ZBERERD -ZER
S 2 FIBEY A AR B HEA2013
FOR1THZ AWM -

BERBESOARBI6IAE L
(fEMBEEAe XABMAYE) -
R2014F12A3MHE B 2SN
T:

As at 31 December 2014

Amount of M2014512A31H
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage net proceeds Amount utilized Remaining balance
FERETERE Bak FBREFSE EEBAEHE ]
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBERT) (AREBET) (AREBET)
1. Enhancement of brand image through 30% 35.0 — 35.0
marketing and promotion
BRAMBHERTSERAREIR
2. Expansion of production capacity 15% 17.5 — 17.5
BRER
3. Investment in research, design and 40% 46.9 46.9 —
development activities
MR- B RFAZFHHRE
4. Funding for working capital and 15% 17.5 17.5 —
other general corporate purposes
REEESRAEM—RARAE
RIEES
100% 116.9 64.4 52.5
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The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 17 September
2013.

Apart from the capital raising activity mentioned above,
the Company has not conducted any equity fund raising
activities in the past 12 months from the date of this
announcement.

Capital expenditure and capital commitments
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the capital
expenditure amounted to RMB34.3 million. As at 31
December 2014, the capital commitments amounted to
RMB11.5 million.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled
in Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. The fluctuation of Renminbi during the year
did not have any adverse effect on the Group's results. In
addition, the Group will conduct periodic review of its
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,479 people. Salaries of employees are maintained
at competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labour market and economic
situation. The Group has adopted share option schemes
whereby employees of the Group are granted options to
acquire shares in the Company. Good relationship has
been maintained between the Group and its employees.
The Group also provides internal training to staff and pays
out bonuses based on staff performance and profits of
the Group.
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Looking Ahead

Looking forward, there will still be tremendous room for growth
of the PRC sports and health industry which is at the flourishing
stage, and the growth of demand will remain strong. The
construction of stadiums, which was driven by the urbanization
in the PRC, the growing number of consumers pursuing healthy
lifestyle, the trend of fitness, the promotion of sports and
exercises and support to health industry from the PRC
government and the rising demand of consumers for products
and services in terms of personalised need and professionalism
provide the Group with an important opportunity for future
development. The Group will continue to enhance its existing
indoor sportswear business while promoting the implementation
and enforcement of strategies with respect to sports and health
industry in all aspects.

In 2015, in respect of the indoor sportswear business, the
Group will maintain and improve our strategies and measures
for 2014 to ensure steady business growth in the sector. The
below shows the key measures adopted:

1. focus on the consumption characteristics of e-commerce/
micro-mall/professional channels/direct sales by coaches,
development of a specific product structure in line with
the features of the new retail outlets consumption, and
enhancement of the sales capability of the new retail
outlets;

2. development of smart apparel for creating new business
growth point in the future;

3. promotion of the establishment of sports and health
stores, improvement of the product structure of sports
and health stores and enhancement of the sales capability
of single store;

4. continuance of an omni-channel establishment for retail
outlets, gradual sharing of information among products/
services/consumption and realization of interaction in
terms of outlet sales, services and experiences for various
network points;

5. development of e-commerce business and expansion of
the sales scale of e-commerce.
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With the development of mobile internet and the alteration of
consumers’ demand, enterprises are required to transform from
product sales-oriented B2C model into consumers’ lifestyle
catering-oriented C2B model. Consumers’ pursuits for sports
and health have been building up swiftly along with the surge
in consumption level. After the promulgation of *“Certain
Opinions on Promoting the Development of Health Service
Industry” in 2013, the State Council promulgated “Certain
Opinions on Accelerating the Development of Sports Industry
and Promoting Sports Consumption” in 2014, which bring
along a significant development opportunity for both of the
health service and sports service sectors. As a result, such
market, of which sports products, sports services and health
management form the significant components, is set to grow by
trillion dollars in the next decade. In respect of sports products
and sports services, we are in the leading position leveraging on
the resources of the Group and our controlling shareholders. In
light of the above-mentioned reasons, the Group timely
formulated our strategies on the development in the sports
sector in the second half of 2014, and in the future, we expect
to establish the Group as a sports group which leads the healthy
sports lifestyle trend.

The Group’s development strategies for the sports industry
focus on the establishment of a sports ecosphere catering for
consumers’ healthy lifestyle to provide comprehensive 3A
("Anytime, Anywhere, Anyway”) services for consumers’ sports
lifestyle.
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From 2015, the Group will fully commence the implementation
of our sports business strategies with focus on the following
tasks:

1. the developments of mobile internet application and large
data application as well as online and offline interaction
for simultaneous promotion in establishing each system in
the ecosphere and gradually build up a comprehensive
sports ecosphere;

2. itis planned that the fitness management business will be
in full swing in 2015.

We believe that the promotion and implementation of the
above measures will tremendously consolidate the competitive
edges of the Group in sports sector in the future. Pursuant to
the Group’s plan, it is anticipated that the Group would
preliminarily establish the basic model for the sports ecosphere
in 2015 and commence full promotion and expansion and begin
to generate revenue in 2016, which is anticipated to bring along
significant additional income and profit growth for the Group in
2017. The implementation of the Group’s sports industry
strategies will create a huge room for future development and
growth of the Group as well as more significant value and
return for consumers and shareholders.
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Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management
and conduct of the business of the Group. The Board currently
consists of seven directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”),
including four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth information
regarding members of the Board.

=2

EXeHAEEXK BB NEERBER
WARE-—REERE -EFTSEANALRE
F(EFDER BREONARTESER =25
MIEMITEFR - TRHIEHEFERENE

#to

Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
®A ZEAH Fie B AERBE
Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 49 chairman and corporate strategic planning
executive Director and overall business
development of the Group
Bt 36 R 5 A 20104F9 H2H EEREMITES 7N 6 B B 1 3 SR B AR 21 AN
BREBER
Mr. Shi Hongyan 2 September 2010 46 vice chairman, developing and implementing
chief executive officer operation plans,
and executive Director and monitoring the
overall manufacturing
activities of the Group
1t 6 JE 5 A 20104F9 A2 H BlEER THARK BERMEBEMAEEN
WITE=S LEMENEEEE
EERE
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong 2 September 2010 48 executive Director corporate investment and
financing activities of
the Group
BOMERLE 20104F9 A2 H HITES AEENRARRBELTE
Mr. Zhao Yan 2 September 2010 46 executive Director implementing and overseeing
development plans,
administration,
human resources,
management and
information systems of
the Group
HH1E 201069 H2H HITES BETRFEREEN

LRET S TTERBRE -
ANER -EBR

N
SERG:
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Name Appointment Date

e ZEBRM

Age
£

Position

B

Roles and Responsibilities
ABEREBE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan 23 November 2011

BEELZL 2011411 H238

Mr. Wang Yao 9 May 2014

B 2014495 H9H

Mr. Yao Ge 7 June 2011

PR A& 201196 HA7H
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56

52

independent
non-executive Director

BYIERITES

independent
non-executive Director

BYFFRTES

independent
non-executive Director

BYIERITES

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group

HEEEG SR AET
B BETg2EAEH
FBEENEEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group

HEEEEGRUBETT
B BETg2EA%KE
(XBEENEHTEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties,
but not participating in
the day-to-day management
of the business operations
of the Group

HEEFSGHAET
B BTg2HAKE
XBEENERER



Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 49, is the founder of the Hosa brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director of the Company on 2 September
2010. Mr. Shi has over 27 years of experience in the apparel industry
and is primarily responsible for the corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he
was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where he primarily
engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various positions at
Fujian Province lJinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Garments”). From September 1996 to March 2000, he was the chief
brand manager of Haosha Garments responsible for formulating,
implementing brand strategy and improving the competitiveness of
Hosa brand. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the general
manager of Haosha Garments responsible for developing and
implementing business development strategies and overseeing the
overall administrative and business activities of this company. From
March 2006 to February 2011, he was the supervisor of Haosha
Garments. Since November 1997, he has been a director of Haosha
International (H.K.) Limited (“Haosha H.K.”) and is responsible for
overlooking the operation, development strategy as well as corporate
investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since October 2005, being one
of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Industry”), he has been the chairman of the board responsible for
overseeing the operation and investment activities of Haosha Industry
and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi Hongliu is a brother
of Mr. Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi had not
been a director of any other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious
Entrepreneurs” (+RINB){BZEZK) at China’s International Fashion
Week by China National Textile and Apparel Council (41 BI474% T %1%
@) in 2007, and “Brand China Person of the Year (Apparel Industry)”
(ShhErR (AR EE 1T H)4EE A %) by Brand China Industry Alliance (f %
FRERESRE) in 2010. He is also the honorary chairman of the
Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in Shanghai (/@& IHmeLEE
).

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of
enterprises (#4%IR:EF2) of China Europe International Business
School (R EYEIFE T g2 0%) in December 2008.

Mr. Shi Hongliu is responsible for setting up overall future strategies
of the group, the financial and operational strategies and managing
the overall operations in Fujian Jinjiang and Beijing head office. Mr.
Shi is also the ultimate in-charge of the management accounting of
the PRC subsidiaries and the treasury functions of the group.
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Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 46, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi
Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry and
is primarily responsible for developing and implementing operation
plans, and monitoring the overall manufacturing activities of the
Group. From 1988 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel
industry where he primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for
women in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he
assumed various positions at Haosha Garments. From September
1996 to March 2000, he was the director of Haosha Garments
responsible for establishing management systems and overseeing the
administrative and business operations. From March 2000 to March
2006, he was the chief production manager responsible for
formulating and implementing the production plans and supervising
the production process. From March 2006 to February 2011, he was
the director and general manager of Haosha Garments. Since October
2005, he has been the vice chairman of the board of Haosha Industry.
And from October 2005 to January 2011, he was the general
manager of Haosha Industry where he was responsible for
implementing production plans and overseeing the production
operation. Since January 2011, he has been the vice general manager
of Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother of Mr. Shi Hongliu.
Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi had not been a director of any
other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various
institutions, the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office Position
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Name of Institution

HEEE

August 2004—-now
2004F8RES

member of the first standing committee

BEEFRHBZER®ZE

vice chairman of the first council

BEEEEREER

September 2005-now
2005F9RES

February 2006—now
20065F2 A E4

vice chairman of the eighth council
FNEEFERRIEER

July 2008-now vice chairman of the second council

20087 A &% FEEEgReR

vice chairman of the second council
FEBESEERIER

August 2008-now
2008F8AES

2009-now member

2009 F &= 45 B8

42 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

RMTEEHE

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
BIMOBRERS

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce
BT I
Quanzhou City Association of Quality and

Technical Supervision
EMNTRERMEE RS
Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association
BREARERNHITEDRS

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
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Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (BERMBFEFEIZEAL) in
April 2005 and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province (8
FREFFFELER) in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive
officers of enterprises (¥ 4BE=MHHEI) of the Economics
College of Peking University (b 7 K245 E3F57) in 2003.

Mr. Shi Hongyan is mainly responsible for the public relationships of
the group including attending different functions/events. He acts as
the spokesman in these event/functions.

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September
2010. Mr. Zeng has over 14 years of experience in investment and
finance and is primarily responsible for corporate investment and
financing activities of the Group. From April 1985 to December 1987,
he worked for the human resource department of Jinjiang City Branch
of Agricultural Bank of China Co., Ltd. in Quanzhou of Fujian Province
(PR RZERITRNDER A FTHEEE RMTEILIMXZ1T) where he was
responsible for human resources management and counseling. From
January 1988 to May 1997, he worked at the human resource
department and was then appointed as the deputy chief of personal
savings department of Shishi City Branch Bank (f5 %7 3 17) where he
was responsible for implementing internal regulations and procedures
related to human resources management, including organization,
employees’ training, welfare and incentive scheme. During May 1997
to July 2004, he was the branch supervisor of the Hanjiang Branch (4
I3 ER) and Baogai Branch (B2 912kR) of the same bank where
he was responsible for the overall operation of the two branches.
From July 2004 to October 2007, Mr. Zeng worked as the manager of
the investment and finance department of Haosha Garments, where
he managed the investment portfolio and expanded the financing
channels of this company. Since October 2007, he has been the
manager of the investment and finance department of Haosha
Industry, where he was responsible for implementing and monitoring
strategic corporate investment and financing activities. Apart from
being a Director, Mr. Zeng had not been a director of any other listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Zeng received his college diploma in finance from Central Radio
and TV University (1 R E#EE R A ) in May 2004. He was qualified
as an assistant economist (BIR4L7%RM) by the Evaluation Committee
of Professional and Technical post of Quanzhou City Branch of
Agricultural Bank of China (1 Bl =R IRITRM T D1 THERZRMBEE
% B <) in December 1990.

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong is mainly responsible for the treasury and
financing functions of the group. He also gives advices in corporate
finance and potential merger and acquisitions.
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Mr. Zhao Yan

Aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 September
2010. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate management
and is primarily responsible for implementing and overseeing
development plans, administration, human resources, management
and information systems of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhao held various positions, including product designer, IT manager,
project manager, research institute director and etc, at Haier Group
Corporation (BB /A R]) and its subsidiaries for approximately 12
years. From August 1998 to February 2002, he was the general
manager of Haier 3C Chain Co., Ltd. (BB3CEHAR A T]). From
March 2002 to March 2003, he was the special assistant to the
general manager at Shanghai Microtek Technology Co., Ltd. (/&
AR AR]). From March to December 2003, he was the
president of Shanghai Hongtusanbao Technology Co., Ltd. (/87 [E
=MRHE AR A T). From December 2003 to August 2005, he was
appointed as a deputy general manager of Shanghai Youtong Mobile
Technology Co., Ltd. (E/8E:@ZERHLBR A F]). From September
2005 to July 2007, Mr. Zhao was the special assistant to the chairman
of the board of directors of Haosha H.K. and has been the vice chief
executive officer since July 2007. Since October 2007, he has been
the vice chief executive officer of Haosha Industry. Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Zhao had not been a director of any other listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Zhao has also received various awards from different accredited
institutions, including the “National Technological Achievement
Certificate” (BIREHIKRTHEEES) in September 1995, the first
prize of “Shandong Province Excellent Achievement Prize for
Computer Applications” (LLUE&AFHHEIEREFKEE) in February
1996, the second prize of “China Light Industry Technological
Progress Prize” (Fh[EIE8 T 2RI ER i S 88( % 48) in December
1996, the first prize of “Qingdao Technological Progress Prize” (F&
T RIEBR i P 18(— 5 28)) in March 1997 and the prize of “Second
Qingdao Youth Science and Technology Prize” (55 — @& &M & FF
$4%) in February 2000. He was selected as the “Advanced Worker in
Marketing Planning” (3577855 25L& T{E#) of Qingdao Three
Major Projects of Industrial System Marketing (& ™ LERFKMIHTT
4" = KTIH") in March 2000.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’'s degree in electronic engineering
from Shanghai Jiaotong University (_F/835@AE) in July 1990. He
also completed the 4-month mid-level business management courses
from the School of Economics and Trade of Qingdao University of
Science Technology (FE&RHEAE), (formerly known as Qingdao
Chemical Engineering College (& &1t Z&7)) in January 2000. Mr.
Zhao was qualified as a senior engineer in November 2000 by
Qingdao Personnel Bureau (5 &M AZEE).

Mr. Zhao Yan is responsible for assisting the board of directors in
setting up future strategies and coordination with internal and
external parties. He also participates in the corporate finance,
potential merger and acquisition and the investor relation functions.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance and had worked in an
international accounting firm and other companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange. She is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of China Lilang Limited (|1 BBl R
A7a]) (stock code: 1234). Ms. Ko is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Ko had
not been a director of any other listed company in the past three
years. Ms. Ko graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a professional diploma in management accountancy in November
1984.

Mr. Wang Yao

Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
9 May 2014. Mr. Wang has obtained a PhD degree in engineering
from Harbin Institute of Technology (K5 ER& T3 A2 in March 1989.
Mr. Wang is currently the vice-chairman of China General Chamber
of Commerce (A B 24 &) and the officer (£F) of Information
Centre of Commerce of the PRC (FERBEFEEEH LY. He is
primarily dedicated to the research on the PRC retail market,
macroeconomy and retail data statistics and analysis. He provides
retail market consulting services to the PRC government. He also
published periodic monitoring and forecastic reports on China
consumables retail market from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Wang is also an
independent non-executive director of Golden Eagle Retail Group
Limited (stock code: 3308) and Bosideng International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3998), the shares of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
7 June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994,
Mr. Yao was independently exploring the development of Japanese
traditional garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In
December 1994, he returned to China and independently explored
the Chinese apparel market and industrial textile structure. In October
1996, he started working at the marketing centre of China Fashion
Association (FF B fRZE R :HAT17E), and was later promoted to the
deputy secretary general in December 1999 and the supervisor of the
marketing centre in February 2001. He was appointed as the deputy
director of China’s Professional Fashion Models Committee (H [54Bg 2%
RFEEIFZ E2®) in July 2002. Since May 2003, he has been the
chairman of the board of directors of Beijing Oriental Bentley Culture
Development Co., Ltd. tREFEFILEREFL). Apart from
being a Director, Mr. Yao had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion
Paintings and Crafts Exhibition (RREE21/ERENRITTEMF IERE)
in 1993 and recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design
Contest (H AR EMRITRETLLE) in 1994.

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang
Radio and Television University (&[5 EIEERAL) in November
1988 and went to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a
two-year Japanese language course at Asahi International School
(B BEIBRE4) in September 1992 and a two years’ advanced study
in garment design at Tokyo Shimizu Institute (RF/E7KELT) in
September 1994 and received a certificate in garment design.
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Senior Management

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson

Aged 41, was appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 14 February
2011. Mr. Lai is primarily responsible for the overall external financial
reporting of the Group. From December 2003 to March 2011, Mr. Lai
worked as senior management in accounting departments in several
listed and private companies. From September 1996 to October 2003,
Mr. Lai worked as an assistant manager in KPMG, where he was
mainly responsible for the external auditing, initial public offering and
due diligence projects of financial institution sector. Since November
2013, Mr. Lai has been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of Han Tang International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1187). Apart from this, Mr. Lai had not been a director of any other
listed company in the past three year.

Mr. Lai received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996. Mr. Lai also received a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Birmingham
in 2008. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai Ho Man Dickson is responsible for the functions of investor
relation, corporate finance and potential merger and acquisitions. Mr.
Lai is also the in-charge of the administration function in Hong Kong
office and is responsible for the accounting functions for non-PRC
subsidiaries and investment holding companies and consolidation of
the group.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Senior
Management” above for Mr. Lai’s biography.
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organization which is open and
accountable to the Shareholders. The Board strives to adhere to the
principles of corporate governance set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and has adopted sound
corporate governance practices to meet the legal and commercial
standards, focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure
and accountability to the Shareholders to ensure the transparency and
accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company
believes that effective corporate governance is an essential factor to
create more value for the Shareholders. The Board will continue to
review and improve the corporate governance practices of the Group
from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective
Board in order to optimize return for the Shareholders.

During the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The
executive Directors are Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Shi Hongyan, Mr. Zeng
Shaoxiong and Mr. Zhao Yan. The independent non-executive
Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. Wang Yao and Mr. Yao Ge. Among
members of the Board, Mr. Shi Hongliu is the elder brother of Mr. Shi
Hongyan. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business or family relationship
among the members of the Board. The functions and duties conferred
on the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings and reporting
on the work of the Board to the Shareholders at Shareholders’
meetings as may be required by applicable laws, implementing
resolutions passed at Shareholders’ meetings, determining the
Company’s business plans and investment plans, formulating the
Company’s annual budget and final accounts, formulating the
Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus distributions as well as
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exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred on it by
the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) and
applicable laws. The senior management is delegated with the
authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to review the financial and operating performance of the Company,
and considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the
Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
of the Group. The executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors also have
access to the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/Board committee
papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee members
with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two
distinct and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson. Details of the
biography of the Company Secretary are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The
Company Secretary confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31
December 2014 as required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company with an initial term of three
years commencing from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan and
Mr. Yao Ge and from 9 May 2014 for Mr. Wang Yao.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board approved a new board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in August 2013. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of
the Company'’s business. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established the following Board committees to oversee the
particular aspects of the Group's affairs. Each of these committees is
consisted wholly of or of a majority of independent non-executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
been established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Group and to provide advice and
comments to the Board. The members meet regularly with the
external auditors and the Company’s senior management for the
review, supervision and discussion of the Company’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures and ensure that
management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. Wang Yao and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on 26 February
2014 and 7 August 2014, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 and the six months ended 30 June 2014 respectively,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
the selection and appointment of the external auditors. There had
been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established, in compliance with Rules 3.25 and
3.26 of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Code Provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
determine the policies in relation to human resources management,
to review the compensation strategies, to determine the remuneration
packages of senior executives and managers, to approve the terms of
the service contract of the executive Directors, to assess the
performance of the executive Directors, to recommend and establish
annual and long-term performance criteria and targets as well as to
review and supervise the implementation of all executive
compensation packages and employee benefit plans. Pursuant to its
terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. The Board expects the Remuneration Committee to
exercise independent judgment and ensures that executive Directors
do not participate in the determination of their own remuneration.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 26
February 2014, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established, in compliance with
Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Code Provision of A.5.2 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, making recommendation to the Board
on selection of candidates for directorships, appointment,
reappointment of Directors and Board succession and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 26
February 2014, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management of
the Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group and the
Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and general meetings of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:
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Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EE2g9n BiITZEEE YTMZEES REREZEEE® REAZ
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Shi Hongliu e 3L 5t A
(Chairman of the Board) ( EetE) 4/4  N/A/AEF N/A/RER NA/TEA 2/2
Ul Sl [iemeya 58 E 5 2 44 NANTER NATER  NATER 0/2
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DU 44 NINTER  NATER 1 02
Mr. Zhao Yan HRsEE 44 NINTER 11 NATIER 22
Independent B ITEE
non-executive Directors L
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan mERRZ L 4/4 22 NATER  NATER 12
Mr. Sun Ruizhe (retired from RIn g A&
the Board and its committees (7R2014F4 A
on 17 April 2014) 17AREEES
REZE®) 11 11 1/1 11 0/2
Mr. Wang Yao (appointed as a = #2 % 4
director and a member of (R2014%F5 A9H
all three board committees EZTREER
on 9 May 2014) 2H=E==E
ZEgKE) 3/3 171 NATER  NAAER 0/2
Mr. Yao Ge BREE 4/4 212 11 11 012

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate
Director.
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TERER/ME

Continuous Professional Development

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional
development. According to the records maintained by the Company,
the Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the new requirement of the Corporate Governance
Code on continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2014:

FEEXRER

EEOEBNCEETRATAEAGSIESTAE
NETEBREZEERNRT - BREALQT
FEZRLEE REZE2014F12831BILEE -
BAEEEIUTIR CHERMSEERT
B EMBESEREFANTRTE  EERNE
MARIMESNAEG B BE -

Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Shi Hongliu B2 R 5T A
(Chairman of the Board) (BEEE2FE)
Mr. Shi Hongyan 78 % JE 5 4
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong B EE
Mr. Zhao Yan 18 5 A
Independent BUFNTEE
non-executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEELZL
Mr. Sun Ruizhe RInE Ak
(retired on 17 April 2014) (RR20145F 4 A17 BE(E)
Mr. Wang Yao FRESE
(appointed on 9 May 2014) (R2014F5 9B B Z )
Mr. Yao Ge Pk E

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made with
all Directors and all Directors declared that they have complied with
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly
prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditors of the Company.
The fees for the audit and review services provided by the auditors to
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB2.35 million.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company concerning
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on
pages 77 to 78 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and
Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control and risk management systems on a
regular basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate. The Company has
established written policies and procedures applicable to all operating
units to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls. The Company
also has a process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the
significant risks to the achievement of its operational objective. This
process is subject to continuous improvement and was in place
throughout 2014 and up to the date of this report. The day-to-day
operation is entrusted to the individual department, which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is required to
strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The Company carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management. External consultants were engaged to assist the
Board to perform high-level review of the internal control systems for
its business operations and processes. Such review covered the
financial, compliance and operational controls as well as risk
management mechanisms and assessment was made by discussions
with the management of the Company and its external auditors. The
Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate
and effective.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at
Room 4105-08, 41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Room
4105-08, 41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong or by email at hosa@pordahavas.com. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within the
Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries
and customer complaints, to the chief executive officer of the
Company.
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Constitutional Document

There has been on change in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of
the Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication
with its investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to
attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure the investors of
the Company and the Shareholders will receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group through the
publication of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and
circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate communications on
the Company'’s website at www.hosa.cn. The Board maintains regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from time to time
to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations,
management and plans. The chairman of the Board and members of
various Board committees will attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to answer questions raised by the Shareholders. The
resolution of every important proposal will be proposed at general
meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of
poll in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be
announced at general meetings and published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. In addition, the Company regularly
meets with institutional investors, financial analysts and financial
media, and promptly releases information related to any significant
progress of the Company, so as to promote the development of the
Company through mutual and efficient communications.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
design and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end sportswear
products, including swimwear, fitness wear, sports underwear and
accessories, which are sold under the well-known Hosa brand.

Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 79 to 83 of this annual
report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK5.3 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB4.2 cents) per share was paid to our Shareholders during the
year. The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
HK6.9 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB5.4 cents) per share
and a special dividend of HK2.0 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB1.6 cents) per share in cash to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing
a total payout of approximately RMB117.9 million, subject to approval
by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting (“AGM") to be
held on Tuesday, 28 April 2015.
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 149 to 152.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$115,475,000. Details
of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB2,005,000 (2013:
RMB5,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Hongyan

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong

Mr. Zhao Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Sun Ruizhe (retired on 17 April 2014)
Mr. Wang Yao (appointed on 9 May 2014)
Mr. Yao Ge

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board had entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 16 December 2011 and thereafter may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing or
payment in lieu of such notice served by either party on the other. The
service contracts are automatically renewed upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company with an initial
term of three years commencing from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko
Yuk Lan and Mr. Yao Ge and from 9 May 2014 for Mr. Wang Yao
and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by the respective independent non-executive
Director on the Company, and by immediate notice in writing served
by the Company on the respective independent non-executive
Director.
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During the year, the independent non-executive director, Mr. Sun
Ruizhe, decided to forfeit his director remuneration. The amounts
forfeited for the year ended 31 December 2014 are RMB52,767 (2013:
RMB180,000).

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. Wang Yao, being appointed by the Board to fill in a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at the
forth coming general meting.

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Zhao Yan and Mr. Yao Ge will retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 39 to 47 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed below, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares (the
“Shares"”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are taken and
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:
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Mr. Shi Hongliu™
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Mr. Shi Hongyan

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong
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Mr. Zhao Yan
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Notes:

(1) Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited are
beneficially owned as to 49.851% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 818,514,859 Shares held by Ho Born

Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.

(2) Yixin Investment Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong and
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong is therefore deemed to be interested in 96,000,000 Shares
held by Yixin Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong also holds 2,379,000

share options of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of
giving certain eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and motivating them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or rewarding them for
their past contributions, and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,500,000 Shares were granted on 23
November 2011. The exercise price per Share is HK$1.28, representing
a discount of 20% to the global offering price per Share. Save as
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disclosed below, no further options were granted under the Pre-IPO EON RLEWAHA BERBEERAARAEES

Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date. All options granted AT E— SR ERE - TERER
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercised in the RAREESHBEREFIRENBRETIZT

following manner: P TT AT

Exercise period Maximum percentage of options exercisable
TES AFTEBRENESESL

Anytime after the first anniversary of the Listing Date
7 B A R e E R B

30 % of the total number of options granted
BB 2 # 8 30%

Anytime after the second anniversary of the Listing Date

Lt RS AFRNEAER

30 % of the total number of options granted

ERHBREAEN30%

Anytime after the third anniversary of the Listing Date
EFTBRHE=RAFENEMNERE

40 % of the total number of options granted
B BB AR 4 B8 40%

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

R2014F 12 A31H BEH X AHESAHER
BEFERENBRENFRBOT -

As at As at
1 January No. of share option 31 December
2014 BREHE 2014
MN20145 Exercised Lapsed R2014 5
Name £ 1818 [EEFR:S [EE 12HA31H
Directors BE=E
Mr. Zhao Yan LA 3,260,000 — — 3,260,000
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong D 2,379,000 — — 2,379,000
Senior management EREEE
In aggregate & 38t 2,530,000 200,000 — 2,330,000
Other employees Hitfg g
In aggregate A it 6,234,000 472,000 — 5,762,000
Others H
In aggregate At 1,717,000 30,000 — 1,687,000
Total st 16,120,000 702,000 — 15,418,000
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No share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were lapsed or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2014.
702,000 share options were exercised during the same period.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain eligible
persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
motivating them to optimize their future performance and efficiency
to the Group and/or rewarding them for their past contributions, and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/or
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance,
growth or success of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000 Shares.
The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
any one person (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time
to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to
pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before
28 days after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in force and effect in all other respects. All options
granted prior to the termination of the Share Option Scheme and not
then exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to
and in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2014, no option had been granted by the Board
under the Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Arrangement for Directors to Purchase Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares fE

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2014, the persons or corporations (other than
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares the Company
A B R RE R
BREH 514 Hattyg BB BABED
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited " Beneficial interests 698,706,859 42.21%
(Long position)
ERREERER AR EniEn (FFE)
Well Born Industrial Group Limited Beneficial interests 119,808,000 7.24%
(Long position)
BHELEEARAT" EmiEm (IF &)
Keen Mate Limited Beneficial interests 165,293,141 9.99%
(Long position)
BEmfEm (F7)
Mr. Zhang Jionglong Interests of controlled corporation 165,293,141 9.99%
(Long position)
RmERE @ SR HIE B /) fE = (F7)
Zehui Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial interests 120,192,000 7.26%
(Long position)
EEIEEERBR A A EniEn (FFE)
Mr. Xu Zehui © Interests of controlled corporation 120,192,000 7.26%
(Long position)
- e o 4% BI0E B 79 fE = (FFE)
Yixin Investment Holdings Limited ¢ Beneficial interests 96,000,000 5.80%
(Long position)
ZEERERBRARATY BEmfEm (F7)
wpERERAT —2-mEsg  OF



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Notes:

(1) Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the directors
of the Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group
Limited.

) Mr. Zhang Jionglong is the sole shareholder of Keen Mate Limited, he is therefore
deemed to be interested in all shares held by Keen Mate Limited which held
165,293,141 shares of the Company (representing approximately 9.99% of the
Company's issued share capital as at 31 December 2014) and were interested in
82,729,300 warrant shares conditionally agreed to be issued by the Company.

(3) Mr. Xu Zehui is the sole shareholder of Zehui Investment Holdings Limited, he is
therefore deemed to be interested in 120,192,000 Shares held by Zehui
Investment Holdings Limited.

(4) Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong, an executive Director, is the sole director of Yixin Investment
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other person
or corporation having an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company made the
following purchases of its own Shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange:
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March 2,364,000
3A
April 856,000
47

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Connected Transaction

On 7 November 2014, the Company as issuer had entered into a
conditional warrant subscription agreement (as amended subsequently
on 10 November 2014 and 6 February 2015) (the “Warrant
Subscription Agreement”) with Keen Mate Limited (the “Investor”) as
subscriber in relation to the issue of a total of 82,729,300 warrants (the
“Warrants”) at the warrant issue price of HK$1.

The Warrants entitle the Investor to subscribe for in aggregate
82,729,300 warrant shares (the “Warrant Shares”) at the warrant
subscription price of HK$4.31 per Warrant Share (subject to
adjustment) for a period commencing on the date of issue of the
Warrants and ending on the date falling two years after the date of
the issue of the Warrants. The Warrant Subscription Price represents: (a)
a premium of approximately 39.9% over the closing price of HK$3.08
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 7 November 2014,
being the date of entering into the Warrant Subscription Agreement;
and (b) a premium of approximately 38.9% over the average of the
closing prices of HK$3.10 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last five (5) trading days immediately prior to the date of
Warrant Subscription Agreement.

The Investor is an investment holding company. The entire issued
share capital of the Investor is beneficially and legally owned by Dr.
Zhang Jionglong (3R AIEEE2 40).

Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited is a controlling shareholder of
the Company, being beneficially owned as to 49.851% by Mr. Shi
Hongliu, and 26.233% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, both directors of the
Company.

Given that the Investor has acquired approximately 9.99% of the
issued share capital of the Company from Ho Born Investment
Holdings Limited on the date of the Warrant Subscription Agreement,
the Investor is deemed to be connected with Ho Born Investment
Holdings Limited by the Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the issue of the
Warrants and the subsequent issue of the Warrant Shares
contemplated under the Warrant Subscription Agreement constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, subject to, among other things, reporting,
announcement and the Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 7 November 2014, 10 November 2014 and 6
February 2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company, has entered into certain transactions with Haosha
Garments.

Connected person

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the PRC
on 24 October 1996, and is owned as to 55% by Mr. Shi Hongliu,
25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, 10% by Mr. Shi Huangpao and 10% by
Mr. Shi Yanggiao. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive Director and is
entitled to exercise more than 30% of the voting power at general
meetings of Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is an
associate of Mr. Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and
therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of
the Listing Rules.

(@)

70

Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement
agreement with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments
agreed to supply its fabric products to Haosha Industry from
time to time for Haosha Industry to manufacture Hosa branded
indoor sportswear products. The procurement agreement is for
a term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable
for a further three years at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of the
Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to terminate the
procurement agreement at any time before expiration subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered
into a new procurement agreement (“New Procurement
Agreement”) with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013,
whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to sell to Haosha
Industry, fabric products from time to time. The New
Procurement Agreement is for a term of three years, from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is renewable for
another three year at the option of Haosha Industry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The
annual caps for the transactions under the New Procurement
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016 are RMB3,000,000, RMB3,800,000 and RMB4,500,000.
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Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring fabric
products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to
respond to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt
and accurate manner compared with other independent
suppliers of similar products available in the market, as well as
the proximity between Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry,
which helps reduce the transportation costs. The prices at which
the Group procures the fabric products from Haosha Garments
are based on terms that are comparable to those available from
independent suppliers of similar products, on arm’s length
negotiation and on normal commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group procured
fabric products of RMB2.51 million from Haosha Garments to
manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear products and the
amount of procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments
was within the approved annual cap of RMB3 million (excluding
value added tax).

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the fact that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house
facilities for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products,
Haosha Industry entered into a processing agreement with
Haosha Garments on 7 June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha
Garments agreed to provide dyeing and printing services to
Haosha Industry from time to time on commercial terms. The
processing agreement is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013 renewable for a further period of three years at
the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with
applicable requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry
has the right to terminate the processing agreement at any time
before expiration subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.
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In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered
into a new processing agreement (“New Processing
Agreement”) with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013,
whereby Haosha Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha
Garments, and Haosha Garments agreed to supply to Haosha
Industry, dyeing and printing services from time to time. The
New Processing Agreement is for a term of three years, from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is renewable for
another three year at the option of Haosha Industry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The
annual caps for the transactions under the New Processing
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016 are RMB50,000,000, RMB57,600,000 and
RMB62,400,000, as approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
May 2014.

Further details of such transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 19 December 2013 and
27 December 2013 and the circular of the Company dated 15
April 2014.

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of
the Group and the Group expects itself to continue using
processing services provided by Haosha Garments in view of
their long-term business relationship, which enables Haosha
Garments to respond to the order requests of the Group in a
more prompt and accurate manner compared with other
independent suppliers of similar services available in the market,
as well as the proximity between Haosha Garments and Haosha
Industry, which helps reduce the transportation costs. The prices
at which Haosha Garments provides processing services to the
Group are based on terms that are comparable to those offered
by independent suppliers of similar services, on arm’s length
negotiation and on normal commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred
RMB42.45 million for the processing services provided by
Haosha Garments and the amount of processing fees paid/
payable to Haosha Garments was within the approved annual
cap of RMB50 million (excluding value added tax).
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such
transactions were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group'’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The
auditors’ letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions:

a.  nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b.  nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes
the auditors to believe that the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

c.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 8 May 2014 made by the Company
in respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions.
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Contracts with Controlling Shareholders

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Non-Compete Undertakings

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to
the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the
controlling shareholders.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to and
including the date of this annual report.

Management Contracts
No contacts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated applicable to the Company.
Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications

and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically.
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The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes
are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” above
and note 21 to the financial statements.

During the year, the independent non-executive director, Mr. Sun
Ruizhe, decided to forfeit his director remuneration. The amounts
forfeited for the year ended 31 December 2014 are RMB52,767 (2013:
RMB180,000). Save as disclosed above, none of the other directors
waived any emoluments during the year.

Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statements as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in China are
required to participate in defined contribution central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries
of the Group are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated income statements as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.
Major Customers and Suppliers

Aggregate sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers

accounted for 13.3% (2013: 17.4%) and 50.6% (2013: 49.2%),
respectively, of the Group's total revenue from continuing operations.
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Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for 8.9% (2013: 10.4%) and 38.2% (2013:
36.3%), respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014, did a Director,
his/her associate(s) or a Shareholder, which to the knowledge of the
Director owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, have an
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

Auditors

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
not less than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Bank Loans
As at 31 December 2014, the Company and the Group has no any

outstanding bank loans. The amount of interest capitalized during the
year ended 31 December 2014 was nil.

On behalf of the Board
Shi Hongliu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N

To the shareholders of Hosa International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa
International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 79 to 148, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2 B AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

6 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHEaREMESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2014F12A31BIEFECAARKSIR)

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue
Other net (loss)/income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and other operating expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Other comprehensive income for

the year

Item that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of operations
outside the mainland China

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company

Earnings per share (RMB)

— Basic

— Diluted

EE
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— &K

—#F

The notes on pages 84 to 149 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 23(b).

1,021,520
(431,209)

590,311

25,505
2,775
(104,537)
(75,223)

438,831
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B OF B B AR R 3R

As at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
72014512 A31H A AR BFIR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Pledged deposits

Fixed deposits held at banks with
maturity over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current taxation

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
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BEEXK#EE
ELEN

ffé 18

EmAE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6

March 2015.

Shi Hongliu

iRy
Director

BEF

The notes on pages 84 to 149 form part of these financial statements.
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16(a)
17

18(a)
18(a)

19(a)
22(a)

22(b)

23(c)
23(d)

59,126
18,564
499
3,514

81,703

151,409
268,958
17,684

723,950
335,199

1,497,200

174,137
8,710

182,847

1,314,353

1,396,056

1,396,056

13,485
1,382,571

1,396,056
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Zeng Shaoxiong

2
Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 75 AR 0 3R

As at 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R2014512 A31H A A R¥FR)

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Other receivables

Fixed deposits held at banks with
maturity over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities
Other payables

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets/Total assets less
current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

RBEE
R B R RH R E

FRBEERE

RBEE
H A 8 UK

FRAEB=AMRT

EHMER
RekBEFEY

RBEEMAE

REBAR
H Al & AR

REBAEAE

REBEEFE

BERE BREER
REBAE

BEEXK#EE
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ffé 18
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N
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19(b)
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31,737

141,950
102,975

276,662

674

674

275,988

275,988

13,485
262,503

275,988

RESER201593 A6 8 #t & M IR T3 -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6

March 2015.
Shi Hongliu Zeng Shaoxiong
B 3t R B
Director Director
EE EF

FSAZ149BE MM BN A BRER—ZBH °

The notes on pages 84 to 149 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOEZSE X

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2014F12A31 B IEFE(AARKSIR)

Balance at 1January 2013  R2013E1A10HEH 13,027 314,011 — 60 61,965 (813) 91,132 5711 567,004 1,052,097
Total comprehensive income ~ EE 54 W BE

for the year — — — — — (7,513) — — 370,359 362,846
Share placed BRERS 432 116,440 = = = = = = = 116,872
Equity-settled share-based DA 25 4 AR A 32

payments 23(d)(vi) — — — — — — — 2,584 — 2,584
Share issued on exercise e MR 2 BRITR G

of share options 26 4922 — — — — — (1,619 — 3,329
Dividends approved in respect 5L N4 E it AL B

of current year 23(b) — (141,672) — — — — — — — (141,672)
Balance at R20135 128318 &k

31 December 2013 014F1F1ANES

and 1 January 2014 13,485 293,701 — 60 61,965 (8,326) 91,132 6,676 937,363 1,396,056
Total comprehensive income ~ FERA B

for the year — — — — — 1,996 — — 403,162 405,158
Appropriation to statutory BAETHE

reserves 23(d)ii) — — — — 5,500 — — — (5,500) —
Equity-settled share-based EREE ARG X

payments 23(d)(vi) — — — — — — — 1,161 — 1,161
Share issued on exercise IR 2 BR TR G

of share options 23(c)(i) 6 1,045 — — — — — (342) — 709
Dividends approved in respect  BLANE B #EE) R &

of current year 23(b) — (156,570) — — — — — — — (156,570)
Purchase of own shares BEAFRH 23(c)ii)

—Par value paid —EfEE (26) = = = = = = = = (26)

—Premium paid —BEE — (5342) = - — — — = = (5,342)

—Transfer between reserves — — A 5 fl 88 & — (26) 26 — — — — — — —
Balance at 31 December 2014 42014512 318 M & & 13,465 132,808 26 60 67,465 (6,330) 91,132 7,495 1,335,025 1,641,146

The notes on pages 84 to 149 form part of these financial statements. FRAZ1A9BE W B A MK —2H o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2014F12A31BIEFECAARKSIR)

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Decrease in pledged deposits

Placement of time deposits with
original maturity over three months

Maturity of time deposits with
original maturity over three months

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from shares issued under
share option scheme

Net proceeds from placing shares

Payment for repurchase of shares

Interest paid

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December
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ReFH
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2 FEHIF R
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The notes on pages 84 to 149 form part of these financial statements.

18(b) 428,706

(67,129)

361,577

(17,475)
(421)

15,045
80,594

(723,950)

327,977

(318,230)

(88,644)

23(0)(i) 3,329
116,872
23(c)(ii)

(569)

23(b) (141,672)

(110,684)

(67,337)

402,536

18(a) 335,199
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % AR M aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies

84

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
2 September 2010. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 December
2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in section 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except that the derivative financial instruments (see
note 1(I)) are stated at their fair value.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) as the functional
currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries is RMB.
These consolidated financial statements presented in RMB
have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1 EXEFHE®

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
and one new interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company:

° Amendments to IFRS 10, IAS 12 and IAS 27,
Investment entities

o Amendments to IFRS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

. Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

] Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

° HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect these returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(i)).

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

1(u)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

o Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20
years after the date of completion.

o Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
o Motor vehicles 2-4 years
o Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

88

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimate useful lives. Software are amortised from
the date they are available for use over a period of three
years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid
to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") governmental
authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the respective periods of the rights.

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease terms, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(R =B HHBAH -

BLAARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

(Continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;

o lease prepayments;
o intangible assets; and
o investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

. Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

92

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
. Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

. Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period when the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

94

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as employee cost with a corresponding
increase in the share-based compensation reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into accounts the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

96

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:
(@  has control or joint control over the Group;
(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(0 is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group'’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(@  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(e)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(99 A person identified in (i)(@) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business.

Accounting Judgement and Estimates

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set
forth in note 1. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an
asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in
profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R I RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZEHEBIN HUAREITR)
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2 Accounting Judgement and Estimates
(Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of sales volume,
sales revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume,
sales revenue and amount of operating costs.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience of selling
products with similar nature. Any change in the
assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-
down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net
assets value. The Group reassesses these estimates at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade
and other receivables by assessing the recoverability based
on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate
is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

= 5 ¥ B & 4L 5

2 Accounting Judgement and Estimates 2

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
and amortisation expenses to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses for future
periods are adjusted prospectively if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Turnover and segment reporting

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture
and wholesale of swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added tax.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business segments. The primary format, business segments, is
based on the Group’s management and internal reporting
structure. No geographical segment analysis is presented as
substantially all assets, liabilities, turnover and gross profit of the
Group are attributable to the operation in the PRC.

In 2014, the Group has four separate segments within the
continuing operations as follows:

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under
the brand name of “Hosa” (”Swimwear — Hosa");

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under
the brand name of “Water Cube” (“Swimwear — Water
Cube”);

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear under
the brand name of “Hosa” (“Fitness wear — Hosa"); and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Turnover and segment reporting (continued)

—  Design, manufacture and wholesale of sports underwear
under the brand name of “Hosa” (“Sports underwear —
Hosa”.

Before 2014, there was another segment-wholesale of swim
and indoor sports accessories under the brand name of “Hosa”
("“Accessories — Hosa") apart from the above segments within
the Group. In 2014, the Group restructures this segment —
" Accessories — Hosa” into other four segments to streamline
the internal reporting structure. The comparative figures have
been reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is
set out below:
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Year ended HZ2014512831H
31 December 2014 LEE
Turnover S+
Cost of sales HERA
Gross profit ER
Year ended HZ2013F12A31H
31 December 2013 tEE
Turnover = 376,508
Cost of sales SHERKA (134,499)
Gross profit EF 242,009

The Group’s turnover by geographical locations is determined
by the destination where the goods are delivered.

41,674 293,752 309,586 1,021,520

(24,013) (100,314) (172,383) (431,209)

17,661 193,438 137,203 590,311
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

3 Turnover and segment reporting (continued)

Domestic A
Overseas BRI

The Group has three customers (2013: two customers) with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's turnover
for the years ended 31 December 2014. The amount of sales to
those customers amounted to approximately RMB439,616,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB286,154,000).

4 Other revenue and other net (loss)/income

966,118
55,402

1,021,520

HE2014F12A831BIEFE > "N&EEHE
ZZRFPQ013F MERF)NRHHBA
REELEENI0% - 8 22014512 8
BTHIEEE REXSEPHNEEEY
B AR #439,616,0007T (20134 : AR
286,154,000 7T) ©

B4R S (B 38) /1

b3

B

Other revenue Heb g A
Interest income — financial institutions AEW A — & @ ikiE 11,735
Government grants X T 478 B 12,999
Others EAb 771
25,505

Other net (loss)/income Hith (&8),W=H=FH
Exchange (loss)/gain bE X (B 18), M 5,457
Net loss on forward foreign exchange SNERERA 4 E 1R F 5

contracts (2,673)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - WERZEN KR

and equipment —
Others HAth 9)

2,775

Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were
therefore recognised as income when received.
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5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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5 PR AR

BBAAB &R Gt A R TEEER

=]
1=

Notes:

(ii)

Finance costs: @ BB :

Interest on bank borrowings RITIE A B

Staff costs: (b) BIAK:

Contributions to defined contribution FEFRFRIRET IR
retirement plans (note 20) (Fff7E20)

Equity-settled share-based NEREEARD AL
payment expenses (note 21) (Mt&E21)

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMBET

Other items: (0 HMwIEA :

Amortisation of intangible assets | AERENESEH
and lease prepayments

Auditors’ remuneration EETRD B

Depreciation e

(Written back)/Recognition of (B E),HERE 5 EW R
impairment losses for trade receivables VEAEEEES

Written back of inventory provision FEREERD

Operating lease charges in respect EAMENRKERES T
of properties

Research and development costs (note (i)) 5 Bk A (B =EG))

Cost of inventories (note (ii)) 7 & B A (Bt £ Gi))

B 5
Research and development costs for the year ended 31 December 2014 (i)

include staff costs of employees in the design, research and development
department of RMB13,574,000 (2013: RMB11,002,000), which are also

included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 5(b).

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes (ii)
RMB54,590,000 (2013: RMB44,344,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above in notes 5(b) and (c)

for each of these types of expenses.

398

1,164

2,584
76,515

80,263

368
2,280
5,906

615
(1,040)

6,548
40,455
431,209

H Z=2014F12A318 It F E A 5 3 &K &
BIEXRGTRAZLSEENEIRNERAARE
13,574,0007T (20134 : AR ¥ 11,002,0007T) -
et AR KT ESD)HER S TRA -

B E204F12A83MBLEFENHFEE XK
£ 35 A R #54,590,0007T (20134 : A R ¥
44,344,0007T)  JhE B TR « 3T & #5554
XEB - MERSBENTARSZERZER
T SCHEEES(b) R (B IMNEFER R S MEFEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 S ERRHEMEENER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive Y BT 18 B
income
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of @ affEaRHEMES K
profit or loss and other comprehensive PP IEBEIE

income represents:

Current tax — PRC income tax ENHARTE — R E TSR
Provision for the year FEEBE 64,719
Deferred tax i E 18
Reversal of temporary differences O =
(note 22(b)) (H$ 3£ 22(b)) 3,355

Provision of dividends withholding tax % B T8 0 i R

108 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 S ERRHEMEENER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive F Y B 18 B @)
income (Continued)

(b) %iIHBE X B4 % 8 B i 5
ENSTAEAEER

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

ol

Profit before taxation B %5 Bl A1 438,433
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRERRS MRS AER

calculated at the statutory tax rates VA TE Bt 5T & B9 BR FR A

applicable to the respective tax A E & 4 = B ()

jurisdictions (i) 109,608
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax R B8 BB R S AR B A B = £ ()

treatments (ii) (43,904)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ ] 31 %4 5 % 19 1 7% 52 & 89
Withholding tax on profit retained P B BT B A AR B FE &Y

by PRC subsidiaries (iii) T B (i) =
Tax rate differential on deferred tax items JEFERH BRI T K =R 2,281
Actual tax expense EREFERALZ - 68,074

(i)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman ) WERSHEREABHE R

(ii)

Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax
as the Group did not earn any assessable profit
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, the
statutory income tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries
in mainland China Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
("Haosha Industry”) and Haosha Industry (Datian)
Co., Ltd. (“Haosha Industry (Datian)”) is 25%.

SE(RBHERESDOHAR
BB AREBARMNRESE
ERRBEREBEENEMAMAE
i o

HRAEEREZE2014F &
20135128318 IEF E I &
BREERBBME BB
EREAE Bt ERES
FIIS BT R B 1 -

(i) BIRHA 200851 A1 B LS
BEeEmERIEEMRS TRJ)
o AEEPRE A B A
/DAE\%E@)H&@E(D&
DEENDREDPEE(CKEH)E
RARI(DELEE(CRKE)DKN
ETEFTS R E B25% ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF 75 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 S ERRkHEMESKERX
of profit or loss and other comprehensive F Y B 18 B @)

income (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

In accordance with the CIT Law, its implementation
rules and the relevant regulations, Haosha Industry
was granted the High and New Technology
Enterprise Status in 2013 for a valid period of 3
years from 2013 to 2015 which entitles Haosha
Industry to a reduced income tax rate at 15%
during the valid periods under the CIT Law and its
relevant regulations.

According to PRC CIT Law and its implementation
rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate
residents from PRC enterprises which are earned
since 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements. Under the Sino-Hong Kong Double
Tax Arrangement, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate
of 5% for dividend income derived from the PRC if
the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity
interests of the PRC Company. Deferred tax liabilities
have been provided for based on the expected
dividends to be distributed from these subsidiaries in
the foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated by subsidiaries in the PRC. On 30
December 2014, the Board of Directors of Haosha
Industry resolved that estimated dividends to be
distributed to the shareholder will not be greater
than RMB 143,946,000 in the foreseeable future.
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BERECEMSHEREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

Directors’ remuneration 7 EEFHMN

Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are set out AREBEFEHFMOFEBEINOT ¢
below:

Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE2014F12A831BLLFE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Hongliu B 5 A
Mr. Shi Hongyan e 98 JE 5% A
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong B S A
Mr. Zhao Yan Bk E
Sub-total NeT

Independent Non-executive % 37 3k % 1T

Directors =
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan [SES bt
Mr. Sun Ruizhe (i) I 5 5k A ()
Mr. Wang Yao (i) S (D)
Mr. Yao Ge R E
Sub-total Nt
Total st
Notes: M RE
(i) Mr. Sun Ruizhe was ceased to be an independent non-executive director (i) BRI L ER2014F4 517 B B X B JEH1T
on 17 April 2014. o
(if) Mr. Wang Yao was appointed as an independent non-executive director (if) FREENR2014FSAREZERBIIEHR
on 9 May 2014. fTES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br B AN HAARESR)
7 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7 EEHFM@

Year ended 31 December 2013 BZ2013F12A31MBLEE

Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and benefits  to retirement Share-based  Discretionary

Fee in kind benefit scheme payments bonuses Total

e EZH RN AR AR & BE
we KREDER IR EEEMR TEAT #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTFT ARETT ARBTFRT ARBTT ARETT

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Shi Hongliu e HE R 58 A — 961 3 — — 964
Mr. Shi Hongyan e 798 E 5E A — 841 3 — — 844
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DA — 601 3 189 — 793
Mr. Zhao Yan WAL E — 631 29 203 — 863
Sub-total NEF — 3,034 38 392 — 3,464

Independent Non-executive % 3 3k %17

Directors i)

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SES R — 250 — — — 250

Mr. Sun Ruizhe BREE AL — — — — — —

Mr. Yao Ge X L — 180 — — — 180

Sub-total INEt — 430 — — — 430

Total et — 3,464 38 392 — 3,894
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, no amount H ZE2013F R2014F 12 A31B EFE -
was paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the 7N &= B B 4 S A5 ok FE {2 S sk MY sE 8 L 5
five highest paid individuals set out in note 8 as an inducement MAE&m e A TE@RIE - ERMNE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AEESMBAEERHEES  KIER
office. BERLAE(E -
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Individual with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2013:
four) are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 7.
Emoluments in respect of the remaining one individual (2013:
one) are as follows:

B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

8 BREFMAL

hEZ&EmHFMA LA WA Q013F & Iy
BEEE BENFHNRWEZIHE - &
T—%Q013%F : —B) ATWFHFMOT :

Salaries and other emoluments
Share-based payments

Retirement scheme contributions RARET BN

The emoluments of the one individual (2013: one) with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

@ & HAl B
PARS {7 B B By 9 5K

bt —%(2013F : —R)BZRRFMALH
FMAFTIEE :

HK$ 1,000,001 to 1,500,000

1,000,001 % 1,500,000 7T

- 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 3 3% Y 5T
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

9 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of 9

the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB6,247,000 (2013:
RMB2,504,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

10 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

10

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB403,162,000 (2013: RMB370,359,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year of 1,655,327,000 (2013:

1,616,528,000).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2 5] #E 18 IR R PR 45 B

ARrEERREGEHMNBREED R

AN/

AMBEHRRARENBEARY

6,247,0007T (20134 = A K # 2,504,000

70 @

BERER

(a)

BERENAEF

BREAXZF TIRE AR R L @EE
7 % 3 E 1k A B A R # 403,162,000
L (2013 : A K % 370,359,000
L) RFRABE ETL BB METF
5 £01,655,327,000 f% (2013 4F :
1,616,528,000f%) 5+ & -

BB BN A S 15 B

Ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of shares placed

Effect of share repurchased
Effect of share options exercised

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

114 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014

R1ATEEE B
REROMTE
BRkhnEeE
TEERENZE

®12 A31 B W E @Mk

1,600,000
14,334

2,194

1,616,528




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

10 Earnings per share (continued) 10 SREBF @
(b) Diluted earnings per share by SREERR

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on FREERN TR EAN R G R E
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the % iR R G F B A K % 403,162,000
Company of RMB403,162,000 (2013: RMB370,359,000) JC (20134 © A K #370,359,000 T )
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of K 38 R o0 #E - 15 #01,663,451,000
1,663,451,000 shares (2013: 1,625,638,000), are as f& (20134 : 1,625,638,000% ) 7 &
follows: R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR A 15 B (S
(diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A31 B &) % @ i

shares at 31 December In#E 15 & 1,616,528
Effect of deemed issue of shares under R A A 7 iz st 2

the Company’s share option scheme REHERE

for nil consideration (note 21) BITRMDAZE (FFFE21) 9,110
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 531 H K & @ A%

shares (diluted) at 31 December ke & (EE) 1,625,638
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 % -BERZE

Cost: A :
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 818 29,330 27,040 6,264 4,011 — — 66,645
Additions B = 1,125 270 1,957 — 15,430 18,832
Transfer of construction ErIiE

in progress Eiz — — — 215 — (215) —
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12831H 29,330 28,165 6,534 6,183 — 15,265 85,477
At 1 January 2014 N2014E1 518 29,330 28,165 6,534 6,183 — 15,265 85,477
Additions AE = 3,992 1,960 2,023 6,765 19,337 34,077
Transfer of construction ERIR

in progress Ei — — — — 1,997 (1,997) —
Disposals He — — (78) — — — (78)
At 31 December 2014 1201412 A31H 29,330 32,157 8,416 8,206 8,762 32,605 119,476

Accumulated depreciation: ZEHTE :

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 3,367 10,692 4,140 2,246 — — 20,445
Charge for the year FEHE 1,694 2,382 933 897 = = 5,906
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12 B31H 5,061 13,074 5,073 3,143 — — 26,351
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1H 5,061 13,074 5,073 3,143 — — 26,351
Charge for the year FEEFE 1,694 2,681 717 1,361 2,938 — 9,391
Written back on disposals HE &R — — (74) - - — (74)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 6,755 15,755 5,716 4,504 2,938 — 35,668
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2014 R2014%E12 8318 22,575 16,402 2,700 3,702 5,824 32,605 83,808
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 128318 24,269 15,091 1,461 3,040 — 15,265 59,126
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are AEEFMBEYE BERZBEAHMLRAF
located in the PRC. 0
Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term of 50 BFLERPEMNEELH E - HEHRA
years in the PRC. 504
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12 Lease prepayments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

12 {2

Cost: A

At 1 January »1A1H 12,104
Additions NE 7,200
At 31 December ®12A31H 19,304
Accumulated amortisation: Rty

At 1 January R1A1H 484
Charge for the year FEHEH 256
At 31 December n12A31H 740
Net book value: BREFE

At 31 December ®12H31H 18,564

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s interests in leasehold
land are held on medium-term leases of 50 years in the PRC. As
at 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the land use certificate in respect of a parcel of
leasehold land in the PRC with net book value of RMB7,041,000
(2013: RMB7,200,000).

R2014F 128318 AE B EF R A
EXMESATRTHAEERSE - AHS0
F o PB2014F12A31H ° A% E IR E 5
— B AP R E £ SRES i FE A
BFE OHEmFEAARK7,041,0007T
(20134 : AR#¥7,200,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

13 B EE

13 Intangible assets

Cost: AR

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1H1H 597
Additions INE 421
At 31 December 2013 M20134F12A31H 1,018
At 1 January 2014 R201451 A1 R 1,018
Additions NE 256
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 1,274
Accumulated amortisation: Ea -

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 407
Charge for the year FEHE 12
At 31 December 2013 MR2013F12A31H 519
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1A1H 519
Charge for the year FEEHE 233
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 752
Net book value: BREFE:

At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 522
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 499

FEHBEERCHAAHBEREME
BURBERTHREEMEERSTA -

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative
and other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

118 HOSA International Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

14 Inventories 14 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated (@ EHFVMEMRRERNEFERH
statement of financial position comprise: LT HAR:

Raw materials JR A 74,281
Work in progress T2 5 11,582
Finished goods X S 65,546
151,409
(b) The analysis of the amount of b) BRAEBRILFTAEEZEDN
inventories recognised as an expense FESREIMWT :

and included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 432,249
Written back of inventory provision FEBEEED (1,040)
431,209
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

15 RTBARINKRE

15 Investments in subsidiaries

TXHFIH B AR RFS

FEEMRG - B

Unlisted shares, at cost

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Hosa Investment
Holdings Limited
(“Hosa Investment”)

ELRBEBERAR HBERESS 17T 100% — BEER
(DEDED BE

Hosa Health Investment BVI us$10 100% —  Dormant
Holdings Limited (“Hosa
Health Investment”)”

/n/}ﬁéﬁhﬁ?“

ARA
(& ’J\ﬁé%&ﬁj)

Hosa Life and Health
Management Limited
("Hosa Life and Health
Management”)”

D n fE R B R B
AR AA]
(DEDEmEREED’

Hosa Group Holdings
Limited (“Hosa Group”)

BVI/Hong Kong UsS$1 100% — Investment holding

REBHERES 10% 7T 100% — EEEK

Hong Kong HK$10 — 100% Dormant

107 7T = 100% EEEL

Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding

a5 B Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ&’&? B 10,0005 7T — 100% HREER
(CESEED
Haosha Industry” PRC RMB121,500,000 — 100%  Design, manufacture
and sales of swimwear,
fitness wear, sports underwear
and swim and indoor sports
accessories
/niﬁ’\gﬁ* ':F' /\E% - 100% &%Q%&
121,500,000 7C é;;k 2% - &%Iﬁ’wu
KERE W}EE))EE#
Haosha Industry (Datian) PRC RMB20,000,000 — 100%  Manufacture and sales of
Co., Ltd.” swimwear, fitness wear, sports
underwear and swim and
indoor sports accessories
EDEECKA) o AR — 100% B R S EKEE) -
BROA" 20,000,000 7T 5 T - BB K A K
KR ERNEEER 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

* Hosa Health Investment is a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and Hosa Health Investment is the subsidiary of the
Company which is newly set up on 21 July 2014.

Hosa Life and Health Management is a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong, and Hosa Life and Health Management is the subsidiary of
Hosa Health Investment which is newly set up on 11 August 2014.

Haosha Industry is wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the
PRC, and Haosha Industry (Datian) is the subsidiary of Haosha Industry
which was set up in November 2013.

The English translation of the companies’ name is for reference only. The
official names of the companies are in Chinese.

16 Trade and other receivables

(@) The Group

Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

15 AMBARMNKEE @

*

EVREREAEEBERESEMA LA
BRAR - BEDREIRERARARR20144F
TRA21VBHEKHME AR -

GV ETRREEAEDSBAMKRINAR
AR BEPETHEERAEDPERERER
2014F8 A 11 B MIKT B A Al ©
EDBEERERERYMIEBERE ik
DEE(KA)RELSEEN2013F 11 AKL
RIKT B AR °
ZERREBEHNEXHEEHRLSZE - ZFAA
MIEXERBAER -

16 B 5 & H B W

(a) ~&HE

Trade receivables g 5 W R
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREE G
Trade receivables B 5 FE Wk
Deposits and prepayments e RFERK
Other receivables H {th & U 5k

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

The Group accepts bank and commercial acceptance bills
for settlement of trade receivables. As at 31 December
2014, outstanding bank and commercial acceptance bills
in the amount of RMB107,860,000 (2013:
RMB119,950,000) and RMB556,340,000 (2013:
RMB224,000,000) respectively have been discounted to
the banks. As these bills have been discounted without
recourse, the Group has derecognised these outstanding
bills as receivables as at 31 December 2014.

247,889
(615)

247,274
17,693
3,991

268,958

P B B 5 Il Wk Ko E it & W 5k B B
RN —FRkm -

AEBEZEWABITREEERLZE
TN E S E WK R2014512 A
STHMWEWRITREERALEE
2 Bl & A R # 107,860,000t (2013
F: AR ¥119,950,0007T) & A R
1 556,340,000 70 (2013 4F : A R ®&
224,000,0007T) 45 B & 1B 8 IR 82 &
THRITHREHAANZE - AR
EHEBHHARTIEEERE
F Bt ANEER2014F12 A 31
BRIEERZ BRI AR ZIRE
BN o
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B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

16 ESZ R HMEWRwm

16 Trade and other receivables

(@) The Group (Continued)

(iy Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice
date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

(@) AEE @)

(i) BRER DT
RmEHKR Bik%EEAH
(k=R A MRFE)IL
HBRREREENE S E KK
(FGFAE S & E b e W30 MR
AT AT :

Within 1 month 118 A A 83,304
More than 1 month but within 3 months 11 B LA F{E3{@ B A 120,369
More than 3 months but within 6 months  31& B LA 1861 A & 34,369
More than 6 months but within 1 year 618 A A EE1ER 6,177
More than 1 year 1964 E 3,055

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 24(a).

As at 31 December 2014, current balance included
in trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) amounted to RMB259,660,000 (2013:
RMB238,042,000). Amount past due was
RMB9,562,000 (2013: RMB9,232,000). Receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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AEEFERRNEMFBR
PP £ 24(a) -

R2014F12A31H BHEEE
SRR RERE) AL
B HA 4 82 & A R 259,660,000
7t (20134F : A R # 238,042,000
L) @M EBAARK
9,562,000 7T (20134 : A KR #&
9,232,000 7T ) o I £& %1 H 7R 4%
BB B FE MR RN TR B A G R G
BN EZEF AR -

EaMEERECRETES
HEANEEAEREFEERZE
VEFEB -REEELR
BEEREEMRE ANEEERY
BEAEY BRSTHBEDHE
B 2HKE - F it &AL
ZEHRBIELRERE -
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B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 ESZ R HMEWRwm

(@) The Group (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

(@) AEBE @)

m)%%@%ﬁ&%%%ﬁm
HBEE 5 FE U K e U 4
EEKFE R EEESEE
EREE S AR E K EHRT
HMBERIS® - EUBERT
HEE R E BN E SR M
55 (R EE16)0)

i REBEEBMT :

At 1 January W1HATH
Impairment loss recognised BRI E K
Impairment loss written back B E
At 31 December ®12A31H

(b) The Company

The balance as at 31 December 2014 mainly represents
amounts due from subsidiaries. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms.

615

(b) ZXA A

M20145F12 A3 B W 4 8 = B 45
FEULHI B A RIFRTE - Z N A A EIK
BB NEETERS-
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B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

17 Pledged deposits 17 EEHER
The Group KE
Bank deposits have been pledged as security for bills payable (see BRITEZCHEMNZHE(R M E19) &
note 19). The pledged deposits are expected to be released - BEEWIFREHN121E A8 AR -

within 12 months.

18 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed 18 HE R HREEEBYWRBITE
deposits held at banks H 7=
(a) Cash and cash equivalents and fixed @ REeRBEEEYKRNARE
deposits held at banks comprise: TEHEEBENEBHERHBUT
HEMAMK :

124

Fixed deposits held at FREABA=EAN
banks with maturity R 17 € B 17 K

over three months 723,950 141,950
Cash and cash equivalent  #A Bt 78 R 0 % &
in the statement of EHRENERLZ
financial position and RekBLZEY
the consolidated cash
flow statement 335,199 102,975
Cash and cash equivalent represents cash at bank and in RekRSZEVWRRNFSER

hand as at the end of the reporting period. WIRITERRFERE -
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18 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed

deposits held at banks (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

cash generated from operations:

Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

18 HERBELEEBYRIBITE
B 7 & am)

(b) ﬁ%g%ﬁgﬁ\@%ﬁ%ﬁ
& B ¥ BR -

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation
— Amortisation of intangible assets
and lease prepayments
— Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Finance costs
— Interest income-financial institutions
— Equity-settled share-based payments
— Written back of impairment loss for
trade receivables
— Written back of inventory provision
— Impairment losses for trade receivables
— Foreign exchange gain
— Loss on forward foreign exchange
contract

Changes in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and

other receivables
Increase in trade and

other payables

Cash generated from operations

B B A R 438,433
BTIFIBEEL FAE
—hE 5,906
—EREER
AT S 368
—HEWE BER
A 2R —
— BB A AR 398
— B A - RS (11,735)
— S E AR 2,584
— B S5 RBFRE
5188 o) _
—FEREER (1,040)
— B SR RERBERRE 615
— A E W (1,754)
—INERIANEE
2,673
436,448
EEELEH
FE (48,176)
B 5 W R E A
JE WSR2 N (682)
25 KEHAM
FE A5 3R N 41,116
REMBES 428,706
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B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

19 Trade and other payables 19 ES R EHMEMNRK

(@) The Group (a) AEE

Trade payables B 5 R 50,987
Bills payable J& 1~ R 1% 60,945
Receipts in advance I8 U X 5,634
Other payables and accruals HiEARRETER 56,571
Bills payable as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were 720144 K% 201312 A31 B & BT
secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 17. ZEBRAEERRITEREET TR
BRME17 -
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FABSREMBENZBERN —F
settled or recognised as income within one year or are NE R AN AR I B EE -
repayable on demand.
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RBREHR BREEZEHNE S
of trade creditors and bills payable (which are included in ERNERRENREGIAE S RHE
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as fth FE A 50 B BR B AT T -

follows:

Within 1 month 1MEA A 49,249
More than 1 month but within 3 months 11& A LA _E{E3 & A A 27,189
More than 3 months but within 6 months 31& A LA 18618 A A 34,915
More than 6 months 618 A LA £ 579
(b) The Company (b) A1 F]
The balance represents accrued expenses and is expected ZERIEEGTER  BASR —F
to be settled within one year. N EEAT -
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21

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at the rates of 18% to 20% of the eligible employees’
salaries. The local government authorities are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has two share option schemes namely, a Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"), which were adopted on 23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the
Company to its directors, senior management, employees and
others under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, being 80% of
the initial public offering price.

B 7 R R I RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

20

21

(BrA=BIEHAIN

BERKER

BIAARESIR)

RETFBEEES TRAURER  AEEE
e ol NG = e oG R 3
SMoRER/RFTERBAEE (3D -
Bl AEBULERAERRBEEF SN
18% £ 20% AT Sl 5K - BT B &
EffERNENRKEENERERE

RNEBINIREE SR G RQED T &K
PIAZEERBIENEENTEAER -
BBRFIWARSERAEHEKENRTENZ
EBEE&Y —Hasl it rBesra (&
Bertgll)  ‘BEESTEA—EHABILR
AAEENREHRIGRKRTE - RIERTE
e AEBEMERESBEARKES
HEWANS%RTEIHRK Em AT A
18 8 Uk A #930,0005% JT (201446 A Bl &
25,0007 70) ° GBI R EANF RSB -

Bk bt 5 R0 - AR BB R Eaf 5t 8l
BRMERKESEMORIAMNS AL EH M
BEREE-

%#Ef?ﬁ.ﬁ%’h&ﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ’ﬂ?&

ARAF 2011511 A23 B £ 4 /R 18 I8 i
RS B EIXAFAEERE B ERES
BTERAFAEZEENBRETE]) KB
ferEst 8 ([RERRMERT &) -

R201MF11 8238 AR AIBRIEE XA
AEERBRETESNEES SHhER
AE -EBEEREMALEREAIZEXAH
EEEM80% R & £20,500,000 f% A& A
AR 1 B BB AR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R M RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

21 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of
10 years ending on 23 November 2021. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite, at
their discretion, eligible participants, including employees and
directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company to a maximum of
40,000,000 shares. The exercise price of options under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be
less than the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares (the “Shares”) as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date,
which must be a business day, of the date of grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;

and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R R I RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBZERBAN TAAREITR)
21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 LESREELURGOGAEERN
(Continued) X5 uE)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows:
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BRAHRZEERERE
= i”
nTE
Options granted on 23 November 2011 R2011F 11 F23H K 1 B9 58
R

Options granted to directors 6,460,000 Note (i) Note (i)
RTEENERE B 7 G1) {hza0)
Options granted to senior management 3,400,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BTaheE2ENERE Bt 52 (i) B 5 (i)
Options granted to other employees 8,640,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BT HAMES /M IERE B 7 G1) B 7 (i)
Options granted to others 2,000,000 Note (i) Note (i)
BT HE M A T AR IR E Bt 52 (i) Bt 5 (i)
20,500,000
Note (i):  These options are exercisable during the period MIeE(): ZEBRETRE BHE2011

commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the one year period after 16 December 2011 (the
“Listing Date”), and ending on the day falling five years
after the 23 November 2011 (the “Granted Date”),
during which, (a) up to 30% options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the second year after
the Listing Date; (b) subject to (a), up to 60% options
granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of the
third year after the Listing Date; and (c) subject to (a)
and (b), all outstanding options may be exercised prior
to the expiry of the said exercise period, failing which
the options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

F12816B8(( £E™mH #H 1)
—FHEEMRZ ARA
Z2011E 11 A238( & &
BEDZAFIEMEE AT
F EU BB @F %$30%
MEERLERETNRETA
HMEE-_FFRENKZANIT
#: (b)E %260%HC %
BEATR EMBBHEE=F
FRFZATHE(EZQBR
BR) : R(QFTA M A&7 KBS
& 4 AT B AT 3 47 5 HA = W AT
TE(EZ@RbODMHER)
MAREITE  ZEERER
KA RBAITE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

21 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are
as follows: (Continued)

(i) Share Option Scheme
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, no options had
been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

(b) The number and weighted average exercise
price of share options are as follows:

21 UIREREELULROABEEN

X5 uE)

(@ RHEMWBEARARFEHFWDOT :

(48)

(i) BERRRESTE
M2014EF12013412 A31 8 -
WEREBRET SR EM
FEARHE -

(b) 55 R #E B B E & 02 S 13
ITEEBWMT :

Outstanding at the T A 18 AR 1T 8
beginning of the year

Exercised during the year R 2 1T{#

Outstanding at the end of ~ FA%E 7R i R 7T
the year

Exercisable at the end of ~ RERA F 1T
the year

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an
exercise price of HK$1.28 (2013: HK$1.28) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.9 years
(2013: 2.9 years).
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HK$1.28 19,350,000
1.287%8 7T
HK$1.28  (3,230,000)
1.2878 7T

HK$1.28 16,120,000
1.28%8 7T

HK$1.28 8,380,000
1.287%8 7T

R20145F 12 A31H  MATENE
P B9 17 18 18 2 1.2838 7T (2013 4F
1288 70) MEFHELFH A9
(20134 : 2.94) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a
binomial lattice model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date

REtE RN 2R EBE

Share price

B An B 15

Exercise price

1T1EE

Expected volatility
8 H1 R 18

Expected option life

B ETRRF 8

Expected dividends
T8 HA B B

Risk-free interest rate
£ [7 B 7| &

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

B 7% 3R 2% Bt 5
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

21 UEa&EURDBAREEWN

R 5 (@)
c) BREMAABERRERR
mx#%%ﬁﬁk%ﬁm AR 75 19

AREE N2EEERLERED
AREBEEFE FIEHBERENR
ABEMGER B BEER ST
E-BRENSHOFBHIIRALE
N RFPETEMNBEHEFTAZER
2h pe iR = o

BRENAALAEENMERK
HK$12,439,818
12,439,818 7T

HK$1.60
1.607 7T

HK$1.28
1.28/8 7T

51.40%

5 years

54F

5.06%

0.67%

%ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬁ%ﬁ&&ﬂﬂ%(*Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ’\]
M F YRR FRFE) REE
RERAIARER E’Jéﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁk?ﬁ
MIEHE AR E{ T ARE - B
HRENELERESEE FTRA
TERABRNEGAIHIAEE
EEELEERTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

22 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

Provision for PRC income tax R B BT 15 A 5% s

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Deferred tax assets and EZEHBEEER
liabilities arising from: BEEEL:

At 1 January 2013 201341 HA18
Credit/(charged) to profit RiBzE A
or loss AR

At 31 December 2013 and 120134
1 January 2014 12H318B &
20141818
Charged to profit or loss I8 & R0

At 31 December 2014 R20144 12 A31H
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(92)

22 SO BRRRFBAEHR

(@) & Of Bt % AR R 3= # #Y BD 57

260

(260)

BIEts -

b)) CHEIAELEREEERE
= .
B .

8,710

K& 6 B B R P R AR
HEE/(AB)AXBAIRFRNE

BT

6,609

(3,187)

3,422

3,422

(7,197)

(7,197)

6,869

(3,355)

3,514
(7,289)

(3,775)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(c)

recoghised: (Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of financial
position:

Net deferred tax asset recognised in the & BF B 7 AR5 R FE R Y
consolidated statement of financial position ~ ¥E 3 4 18 & &= % &

Net deferred tax liability recognised in the & OF B 5 1R 000 3% e 3R
consolidated statement of financial position & 3T 7 T8 & & % &

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the mainland China amounted to
RMB1,318,894,000 (2013: RMB957,235,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of RMB58,747,000 (2013: RMB47,862,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the withholding
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries in the mainland China and the
Directors have determined that these profits are not likely
to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

22 EHMBRRRIOAER
()

b) ERAELEHEBEEERE

& @
£ 2 B B TS RS 2 B

3,514

(c0 MAREANELEREAEER

MN2014F12 8310 8K & B &
AR OK BE Y E T BB A R R R DK
FMEEBENERUEEZEEARK
1,318,894,000 7T (20134 : A R #&
957,235,0007T ) - R IE T 1B B & A
R #58,747,00070 (20134 : A R #&
47,862,0007T ) I £ 5t 1 9 Uk 72 F 1R
BREEEMOENRETER
FHEEAABZEH R EANENSAQ
ANRERR MEZFCETE%XSE
FBEARARRNRNATESHETD
K e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends 23 EX-HEERE
(@) Movements in the components of equity (@) EERARIBD S
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBHEHFEZSEZED Z2H W
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated RERESRHNEERESEN A RS
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes R -ARARFVEFRNERS
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BRI DR BB EEHMT -

individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set below:

The Company i

>
el

At 1 January 2013 H2013F 1718 13,027 314,01 = (813) 5711 (27,044) 304,892
Total comprehensive  FRiRE WS

income for the year — — — (7,513) = (2,504) (10,017)
Share placement &t B & 432 116,440 — - - - 116,872
Equity-settled share-  LARE %5 4 & AR 15

based payments = it 23(d)(vi) — - = = 2,584 = 2,584
Share issued on exercise 17 & i i 2

of share option BEETRG 26 4,922 — — (1,619) = 3,329
Dividends approved in &t 7% 4F & #b J £

respect of current year i & 23(b) — (141,672) = — — — (141,672

At 31 December 2013 #A2013F 12 A318 &

and 1 January 2014 201451818 13,485 293,701 = (8,326) 6,676 (29,548) 275,988
Total comprehensive — FRiRE W58

income for the year — — — 1,996 — (6,247) (4,251)
Equity-settled share-  LAE 2545 & 1L

based payments B A7 32 f+F 23(d)(vi) — — - - 1161 - 1,161
Share issued on exercise 771 i i # 2

of share option BEETRG 23(c)(i) 6 1,045 — — (342) = 709
Dividends approved in 3t 7k 5 €

respect of current year /K & B 23(b) — (156,570) — - - - (156,570)
Purchase of own shares & B 7% & % {3 23(c)(ii)

— Par value paid —BNEE (26) — - - - - (26)

— Premium paid —BRRE = (5,342) — - — - (5,342)

— Transfer between — — B {8 6 4 ¢

reserves — (26) 26 — — — —

At 31 December 2014  7A2014412 B 31H 13,465 132,808 26 (6,330) 7,495 (35,795) 111,669
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 EX - EERKRE @
(b) Dividends by RE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () AFEEMNEADAEZRKRES
Company attributable to the year: A% &

Interim dividends declared and paid of B 5 IR &K fF

HK5.3 cents per share (2013: HK4.8 T IR5. 3L A R B AR B
cents per share) (20134 : BR%4.8781l) 60,998
Dividend proposed after the end of R B AR 1%
the reporting period of HK6.9 cents BR R S B R6.9%8 10
per share (2013: HK6.6 cents (20134 : Fpk6.6781L)
per share) 86,018
Special dividend proposed after the end of %k & 8f 7K 1% #i# & =F Bl A% &
reporting period of HK2.0 cents per FR%2.051
share (2013: Nil) (20135 : &) —
The dividend proposed after the end of the ¥ B R 12 R 89 Bk B | R
reporting period has not been recognised as a WMEBRRERRBAE -
liability at the end of the reporting period.
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (iy BERAAFEZKRREGBE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, MBFEFERE(RNZFEEL

approved and paid during the year: ERBE XA :

Final dividend in respect of BRBTMHEER
the previous financial year, RS (RZFE
approved and paid during the year, EROEREAT)
of HK6.6 cents per share Fh%6.6751l (20134 :
(2013: HK6.3 cents per share) Fh%6.37510) 80,674

wvEpaRAE —=-—nsss 13D



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ Ak Y AE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 EX  RERRE @
(c) Share capital (c) IRZA
Movements in the Company’s authorised share capital are RABHERERAEZEMT ¢
as follows:

136

Authorised: SEE

At 31 December 2013 and 2014 722013 2014412 A31H 0.01 10,000,000 100,000
Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as RATBEBITRANZESHNT
follows:

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR:
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 1,600,000 16,000 13,027
Shares placed B RS RH 54,500 545 432
Shares issued under BT ST~ 2

share option scheme B 217D 3,230 32 26

At 31 December 2013 and R 2013F 12 A31H &

1 January 2014 2014181 H 1,657,730 16,577 13,485
Shares issued under share B PRAERT &I 2
option scheme BBITR’RHG (i) 702 7 6
Purchase of own shares BEXRF KRG (ii) (3,220) (32) (26)
At 31 December 2014 2014128318 1,655,212 16,552 13,465
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEBRFEAAGRRBTARET KA
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled BRE WA EARRAE LEBFHE
to one vote per share at meeting of the Company. All —REOE—F - HRAQAAF
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's HREE FALZBERHZERASR
residual assets. o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Shares issued under share option scheme
During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 702,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of RMB709,000 of which RMB6,000
was credited to share capital and the balance of
RMB703,000 was credited to the share premium
account. RMB342,000 has been transferred from
the share-based compensation reserve to the share
premium account.

Purchase of own shares
During the year, the company repurchased its own
shares on The Stock Exchange as follows:

Bt 85 ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

23 EX-HEERE @

(c) BN (@)
() THEBEREZEZITR
VAN
J]
FRCITEBEREAREA
R #709,0007C & & &N A A
702,000 i% E@A% - Ep A REE
6,000 TTEF AR AN » #4%8 A R ¥
703,000 Lt AR EER o A
R #342,000C 2 B AR 19 &
A cAEREEARORE
/EEO

iy BEAXEKRND
FR - ARBREERTERDE
KERRHWMAT :

March 2014 201443 A 2,364,000
April 2014 201454 A 856,000
3,220,000

The repurchase was paid wholly out of share
premium in accordance with section 37(4) of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled
of HK$32,200 (equivalent to RMB26,000) was
transferred from share premium to the capital
redemption reserve.

2.13 1.94 4,892
2.20 2.19 1,883
6,775

BEFRESHSE R F A E374)
16 X [B] B A P AR 55 (B 26 &
T AEREEHEKROEE
79 & ¥E32,20078 o0 (A E R A
R #26,0007T) E B & D& &
EREENER R -
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B & R R MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B = BEBIHN GUARESIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

138

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital redemption reserve represented the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
represented exchange differences and the excess of
value of assets injected to Haosha Industry by the
investors over nominal value of share capital, which
was accounted for in equity under capital reserve.

Statutory reserve

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian), the entities
are required to transfer part of its net profits (after
offsetting prior year losses), as approved by the
board of directors, to statutory general reserve.
Haosha Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian) are
required to appropriate general reserve at 10% of
its profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. As at 31 December 2014, appropriations
were made by Haosha Industry (Datian) to the
general reserve at 10% of its profit after taxation.
However, such reserve made by Haosha Industry
reached the aforementioned percentage, thus no
further appropriation is required.
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23 EX - REERRKRE @

(ii)

(iii)

B0 i (B & B AN FE
i
REMSHBRAE ARF
B BB 173 5 18 BR AT 400 1 3 TR %
e FRR i RERERS
HEKXREBIMZ%E ADH
LR BRI BIE R R
&R o

BEXABORFEEBEEDROMNE
=0

N
M20144 % 2013%12 A318 2
P BRI RANE R B
FRONEEZBRIEEEETAGED
BXZEEBEZRERABE
M D ZESBARY A#
mPHE ARG -

EERE
BBEEDPBEEREDPEE(K
HOWAHERMH ZEE
RN EAEBREREEE SN
B E /B A (K 3H B
TEEEBBRBR)EELEE —BH
BB EBEEREDLPEE(K
H)EBEBRES R RA
MERETHBRHZF BN
10%BIE—RFEEHE BEEFHE
AR B R E AN HY50% o A
2014512 A31H B B ¥
(KE)ZEEBRFEEZFE10% M
—MEBELBER -EEDE
¥ EEMZFEREEEE LB
DE B A — R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the mainland China which are dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in note 1(t).

Other reserve
The other reserve comprises the following:

—  the difference of RMB91,124,000 represents
75% of the historical carrying value of paid-in
capital of Haosha Industry amounting
RMB91,125,000 acquired over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company
amounting HK$1,000 (RMB equivalent of
approximately RMB833); and

— the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent
of approximately RMB8,000) between the
historical carrying value of entire paid-in
capital of Hosa Group amounting to
HK$10,000 and the consideration of HK$1
acquired by Hosa Investment.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the
fair value of share options granted to certain
directors, senior managements, employees and
others of the Group.

B 7% 3R 2% Bt 5
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(REBEERIN HUAARKEIR)

23 EX - HEERE @

HETEERE /@

(iv) [E 5
AEBWESBRBERE S
B A 3 35 S0 R TS B0 BF IS R PR
EARRANEZE 252
BRAR R 1) & 5 &Y & 5
ETURE -

(v) HAbfEeE
H i RETHISE

— Z% AR¥91,124,0007T
EFMWBEEDPEEER
BEARAELEMENTS% A
21 A R #91,125,000 T i
EARFETHRSE
B A 801,000 T (AR
ZEEHARSEIT)H
o R

- /u/)x.i%(,\q&5$

[ £ BR T (B A& £010,0007%8

TC B D 3% B U BE )

8178 T 8 &= $9,9998

TANREBEZSEHARE
8,0007T) °

M)%%ﬁggﬁmﬁﬁ%

LD AREENHERER

AEBETES BRAEEA

B -EEREMATERAE
IRER A REE -
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B 7 R R M RE
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e)

140

Distributability of reserve

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves (including
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company as
at 31 December 2014 was HK$115,475,000 (2013:
HK$326,028,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’'s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
generally due within 90-180 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, 7%
(2013: 15%) and 30% (2013: 53%) of the total trade and
other receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.

B 7% R R MY &
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

142

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 16.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the chairman of the Group when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the financial
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable
on demand at the end of the reporting period.

The Group does not have significant exposure to interest
rate risk as it does not expect interest rate fluctuation
would have any significant impact on the fair value or
cash flows of its cash and bank deposits held as at 31
December 2014.

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the
PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
guoted by the People’s Bank of China that are determined
largely by supply and demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, cash at bank that
were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB955,981,000 and RMB1,260,833,000, respectively.
Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure
as at 31 December 2014, as the turnover generated from
export sales of the Group was insignificant.

Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2013 and 2014.

25 Commitments

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2014
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

Contracted for BET 4

B 75 AR Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)
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25 Commitments (Continued) 25 #IE @)
(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease (b) R2014F 128318 - RE AT HH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are KEHERNOHRRKERS MK
payable as follows: BEWT

Within 1 year 1F A 6,524
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B B5FRN 15,316
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, the #H £2013F &2014F12H318 1k
Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in Hong FE - AEERKEHETHEN
Kong and mainland China held under operating leases. EAERFBE AP ATIEE A AME
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five A HE—RINF A/ —ZERF -
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms EENERMERRERAEREE
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent HE - HEMERSEHS -
rentals.
26 Material related party transactions 26 EXBEEBAXS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere BEMEREEMI S EN B
in the financial statements, the Group entered into the BRI  REBD TS NHEABE S
following material related party transactions. 5

During the year, the directors are of the view that the following
is related party of the Group:

FA EEFRARATHAEE B

Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments 55% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Co., Ltd *(“Haosha Garments”) Hongyan respectively, who are the directors of
BREABIMELERERAGNEDHK]) the Company

HMARARESHERTER
78 IE % A 5 B B 55% K& 25%

* The English translation of the companies’ name is for reference only. The * REEEOEXBREHRLSE - ZARMNERS
official name of the companies is in Chinese. AR -
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26 Material related party transactions (continued) 26 EXBEBAIRS @
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) TEEE A S HN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the NEETEEIE A B KB (6 FE W
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s ST WBER N FAATE EMNZE
Directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest RIS BEN DN FETES

paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

FMEENRE) W

Short-term employee benefits REEERT 5,134
Equity settled share-based payments NS EE ARG T 385
Contributions to defined contribution REMRICGE ARG
retirement plans 78
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)). @EE T ATE Tk A | (B 55
5(b)) °
(b) Transactions with the related party (b) HHEAHE T IR 5

Purchases of products BEEM

— Haosha Garments — BRI 1,980
Receiving processing services EREZENIRS

— Haosha Garments — B BIXK 33,864
Purchases of land use right (tax included) B8 & +#h{E B (BiEH L)

— Haosha Garments — B RK 7,200
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=BEAI HUARKIIR)

26 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Balance with the related party

As the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following balances with related party:

26 EXFEBAIRS @

(c) EEBARETS VA ER

RBEMR AEERBEBSTAT
5l 5

Trade payables Y AN
— Haosha Garments — BN RK

Other payables EL A fE 53X
— Haosha Garments —EDBIK

The amount due to related party is unsecured, interest
free and is expected to be paid within one year.

27 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2014, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use. The Directors consider the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Mr Shi Hongliu.
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28 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014

Up to the date of issue of this report, the IASB has issued a few
of amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

B 7 R R I RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B EAIN HUAAREIIR)

EEAHKET ALY BReEUE
ESCEHEEBHE2014F12A318 1
FEEAREBNERT RFTER - it
EHBERRITERNZEBGT R E
Bl o ZEAEF] RN ERBIE TS - Al 8¢
EAREEERE -

Amendments to IFRS 19, Defined benefit plans: — Employee contributions
R B IMEERFE 195 (BRIAN) - REEFE  —EBEHA

Annual improvement to IFRSs 2010—2012 cycle
BREA S R L RI2010F £ 20125 B 8 2 F E e

Annual improvement to IFRSs 2011—2013 cycle
BB mE LR 20MFR2013FRH 2 FEBUE

1 July 2014
201447818

1 July 2014
201447818

1 July 2014
201447818

Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of Interests in joint operations

BERMEREENENEUERTR)  WERF L E# D 5

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable method of
depreciation and amortisation

BRert Xl 16 kBBt 2R FE 38 2 185]  MERBIHM AT ES T ZE
/9 5% B

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRI B E LR E SN KEFEL ALK

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
BB mEERFEIREMT A

EDBEIRABRAR —T—HEFR

1 January 2016
20161 A1H

1 January 2016

20161 H1H

1 January 2017
20171 H1H

1 January 2018
20181 H1H
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28 Possible impact of amendments, new 28 B, £2014F12H31H It F
standards and interpretations issued but ECHEMERERWIEBET -
not yet effective for the year ended 31 A EARREN TR E

December 2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In Addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) come
into operation from the company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s financial
year which began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in
the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it
has concluded that the impact is likely to be significant and will
primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFEMBEHME

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SHBBERAEK

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment M MR RE 43,861 46,200 48,413 51,868
Construction in progress ERIR 15,265 — — —
Lease prepayments BEHEE 18,564 11,620 11,862 12,104
Intangible assets mEE 499 190 178 151
Deferred tax assets REHRIBEE 3,514 6,869 7,857 5,277
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 81,703 64,879 68,310 69,400
Current assets RBEE

Inventories FE 151,409 102,193 100,061 51,376
Trade and bills receivables BoRWF R EREE 247,274 252,398 210,070 180,823
Deposits and prepayments Re RBRAK 17,693 13,866 14,633 19,591
Other receivables H b fE IR 3,991 5,938 1,954 14,249
Amounts due from related parties i U B B 5 718 — - = 74,540
Other assets HipEE — — — 1,722
Pledged deposits BEEHRER 17,684 98,278 13,171 37,920
Cash at bank and in hand* BITEFINTFHERS* 1,059,149 730,513 635,617 83,827
Total current assets SEEEMEE 1,497,200 1,203,186 975,506 464,048
Total assets EEHAE 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816 533,448
Current liabilities REBEE

Bank loans BITER — 86,390 — 98,800
Trade payables B 5 EM 50,987 28,231 20,771 12,127
Bills payable ANES 60,945 46,447 62,259 77,306
Receipts in advance L& 5,634 1,042 3,344 4,293
Other payables and accruals EMEMNTNETER 56,571 41,305 63,403 31,834
Amounts due to related parties FE <t B8 B 5 A — = = 3,406
Derivative financial liabilities TEL@masE — 933 — —
Current taxation B EA 7 18 8,710 11,120 16,808 8,291
Total current liabilities mEBAEARE 182,847 215,968 166,585 236,057
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE — — _ _
Total liabilities aEmE 182,847 215,968 166,585 236,057
Shareholders’ equity IR E R 1,396,056 1,052,097 877,231 297,391
Total liabilities and equity BERERLAE - 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816 533,448

@ Included fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months. * BREERHBA=EANRTEREFR -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEEMEERE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and EHEEREMEESRER
Other Comprehensive Income

Continuing operations: FELEER:
Turnover e 1,021,520 848,063 695,168 347,787
Cost of sales 5 AR (431,209) (333,874) (262,552) (178,382)
Gross profit EH 590,311 514,189 432,616 169,405
Other revenue H bl A
— Interest income —FLEHA 11,735 6,057 1,074 415
— Rental Income —H2 WA — — 103 1,175
— Government grants — BT A 12,999 17,786 3,380 338
— Others —H 771 3,783 116 —
25,505 27,626 4,673 1,928
Other net (loss)/income Hih (BE)/ WA FEE
— Exchange (loss)/gain —E% (E18) W 5,457 695 268 (380)
— Others — A (2,682) (1,010) 72 1
2,775 (315) 340 (379)
Selling & distribution expenses FER == TN (104,537) (91,499) (65,331) (29,122)
Administrative and other TR EE ML
operating expenses X (75,223) (70,414) (55,086) (26,695)
Profit from operations PR =B 438,831 379,587 317,212 115,137
Finance costs B 7% i AR (398) (568) (1,544) (6,382)
Profit before tax & &5 51 A1 B 438,433 379,019 315,668 108,755
Income tax expenses Frisfip (68,074) (47,907) (41,937) (14,380)

Profit for the year from continuing 1578 &8 & % 15 1)

operations FE 370,359 331,112 273,731 94,375
Discontinued operations: BRI
Profit from discontinued operations #% |k 45 & 3£ 7% B 7 4 — — = 4,135
Net gain on disposal of HEWNB QR

subsidiaries, machinery N ERER

and equipment W 25 5 58 — = = 17,596
Profit for the year FEFE 370,359 331,112 273,731 116,106
Exchange differences on HE B AR I

translation of financial B8 B M B 7 Rk

statements of operations MERZ2

outside the mainland China (7,513) (175) (638) —

362,846 330,937 273,093 116,106

Earning per share BRAF
— basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE
(AR®TT) 0.23 0.21 0.22 0.10
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEMBUE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement EHBEELERER

Operating activities REE !b
Cash generated from operations KEMGR® 428,706 305,840 345,318 116,092
Income tax paid B ER (67,129) (49,785) (36,000) (8,762)
Net cash generated from RETH B

operating activities B FHE 361,577 256,055 309,318 107,366
Investing activities REFE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYWE BE KX

plant and equipment B (17,475) (3,572) (2,556) (31,538)
Payment for lease prepayments iEl=1 TE INEENEN — — — (9,084)
Payment for purchase of BEEFEEMK

Intangible assets (421) (74) (135) (60)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEREHBARME

disposal of subsidiaries FRESRA (R ) = = 13,080 (1,842)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BE KK

property, plant and equipment Fri8 5% 18 — 68 109 —
Interest received B YR A 2 15,045 2,741 1,074 417
Decrease/(increase) in B E#F TR (E)

pledged deposits 80,594 (85,106) 24,749 (24,680)
Placement of time deposits with FARIEABRA=(EA

original maturity over ZEHER

three months (723,950) (327,977) — —
Maturity of time deposits with JRE)ER B &B 8 = & A

original maturity over ZE BT B B EE

three months 327,977 81,070 — —
Net cash (used in)/generated from R&SEE (FTH), Fiig

investing activities REFHE (318,230) (332,850) 36,321 (66,787)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE RS RIA — 86,323 — 214,578
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITE R (88,644) = (98,800)  (239,250)
Proceeds from shares issued R I% ﬁﬁﬂ‘i% AT 8BTS

under share option scheme P15 38 3,329 — — —
Proceeds from issue of shares BRARAEERITRNA

in the public offering, IR RIEIRETRASL)

net of issuing expenses — — 488,575 —
Net proceeds from placing shares BEERHDAERIEFEE 116,872 — — —
Cash received from capital 8% & B B E’J Re

injection = = = 60,670
Payment for repurchase of shares }& 1) F 181 1+ 3% — — — —
Interest paid BT B (569) — (1,544) (8,395)
Dividends paid to equity B AR A #E R A R

shareholders of the Company B % B (141,672) (161,539) (151,705) —
Net cash (used in)/generated BEES (FTH) i

from financing activities HEFE (110,684) (75,216) 206,151 27,603
Net (decrease)/increase b2 ﬁ RELZEY

in cash and cash equivalents W), 1 s (67,337) (152,011) 551,790 68,182
Cash and cash equivalents M1B1EHNERERESE

at 1 January B 402,536 554,547 83,827 15,645
Cash and cash equivalents R12B3MENEBEEK

at 31 December BEEEY 335,199 402,536 635,617 83,827
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEEMEERE

Major Financial Ratios FEBKER
A. Profitability ratios: A BRIENEE:
1. Growth 1. B
a. Turnover a. EHEH 20.45% 21.99% 99.88% 118.50%
b. Net profit b. SFF|8 11.85% 20.96% 135.76% 304.73%

c. Total comprehensive income c. e EzE 9.64% 21.18% 135.21% 304.73%

2. Profit margins 2. M=
a. Gross profit margin a. EFE 57.79% 60.63% 62.23% 48.71%
b. Operating profit margin b. 4 H)H =& 42.96% 44.76% 45.63% 33.11%
c. Total comprehensive income ¢, 44 Mz @58 35.52% 39.02% 39.28% 27.14%
d. Net profit margin d FFEE 36.26% 39.04% 39.38% 27.14%

3. Return on equity/total assets 3. f# /@ & FE @R =X

a. Return on equity a. BEmEWmE 29.64% 3431% 46.50% 55.55%
b. Return on total assets b. #EERHE 25.49% 28.63% 34.63% 25.98%
B. Liquidity ratios: B. RBIESLLE:
1. Liquidity ratios 1. mMBERLE
a. Current ratios a. MENELE 8.19 5.57 5.86 1.97
b. Quick ratios b. ®RELL XK 7.36 5.10 5.26 1.75
2. Turnover ratios 2. A& ®
a. Stock turnover days a FEABHH 107.33 110.55 105.26 122.61
b. Debtors’ turnover days b. FEUER R A% B & 89.38 99.71 103.53 99.00
c. Creditors’ turnover days ¢« BENEFAEARH 78.98 86.21 119.88 113.42
C. Capital Adequacy ratios: C EXFTRLEER:
1. Gearing ratio 1. BELR
a. Gearing ratio a. BfEHE
— bank loans —RITER — 6.85% — 18.52%
b. Gearing ratio b. BRHE
— bank loans & —HRITER
bills payable RERER 3.86% 10.51% 5.96% 33.01%
2. Debt to net worth ratio 2. BB FELE
a. Debt to equity ratio a. BEERLX 4.37% 12.67% 7.10% 59.22%
b. Interest coverage b. FI B (&= 1,100.78 668.29 205.45 18.04
3. Effective tax rate 3. BERBIX 15.53% 12.64% 13.29% 13.22%
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